
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 Meeting: Thursday, 15th December, 2022 
     at 2.30 pm (Committee Room No.4) 

 
 

A G E N D A 
PART ONE 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.   
 

 

2.   Urgent Items 
 
To deal with any items which the Chair considers to be of an urgent 
nature.  
 

 

3.   Delegations 
 
To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting. 
 

 

4.   Admission of Public and Press 
 
To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda. 
 

 

5.   Declarations of Interest 
 
To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting). 
 
Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.   
 

 

6.   Confirmation of Minutes 
 
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 20th October, 2022. 
 
 

5 - 12 



 

7.   Public Participation 
 
Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make 
representations or present a deputation or petition at this meeting 
should apply to do so by no later than 5pm two working days before 
the meeting.  Information on how to make the application can be 
obtained by viewing the Council’s website www.barrowbc.gov.uk or 
by contacting the Democratic Services Team at 
ctteadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk or by telephone on 01229 876314. 
 
(1) Questions and Representations 

To receive any questions or representations which have been 
received from Members of the public. 

 
(2) Deputations and Petitions 

To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received 
from members of the public. 

 
 

 

FOR DECISION  
 

 

(D) 8.   Work Plan 2022-2023  
  

13 - 22 

(D) 9.   Audit and Governance Improvement Plan  
  

23 - 42 

(D) 10.   Audit and Governance Committee Effectiveness  
  

43 - 54 

(D) 11.   Internal Audit Progress Report  
  

55 - 78 

(D) 12.   Review of Internal Audit  
  

79 - 82 

(D) 13.   Risk Management  
  

83 - 92 

URGENT ITEMS  
 

 

14.   External Audit Plan   
 

93 - 122 

15.   Assurance Arrangements   
 
 

123 - 174 

NOTE  (D) – Delegated 
  (R) – For Referral to Council 
 
Membership of Committee 
Councillors 
 
Councillors Burns (Chairman) 

Assouad (Vice-Chair) 
Callister 
D. Edwards 
Mcleavy 
Nott 

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/
mailto:ctteadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk


 

 
 
 

For queries regarding this agenda, please contact: 
 Katie Pepper 

Democratic Services 
Officer 
01229 876314 
kpepper@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 
Published: Wednesday, 7 December 2022 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

Meeting Thursday 20th October, 2022 
at 2.00 pm. (Committee Room No.4) 

 
PRESENT:- Councillors Burns (Chair), Assouad, Callister, McLeavy and Nott 
 

Officers Present:- Susan Roberts (Director of Resources), Debbie Storr (Head of Legal 
and Governance & Monitoring Officer), Jamie Muir (Procurement Officer) and Katie 
Pepper (Democratic and Electoral Services Officer). 
 

Also present:- Matt Derrick and Gareth Kelly from Grant Thornton. 
 
12 – Apologies for Absence 
 

An apology for absence had been received from Councillor D Edwards. 
 
13 – Minutes 
 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 28th July, 2022 were taken as read and confirmed. 
 
14 – Public Participation 
 

RESOLVED:- To note that no questions, representations, deputations or petitions had 
been received in respect of the meeting. 
 
15 – Annual Audit and Statutory Recommendations Report 
 
Gareth Kelly and Matt Derrick from Grant Thornton attended the meeting to present 
the Auditor’s Annual report in relation to the financial year 2020-2021 along with the 
Statutory Recommendations Report. 
 
They had concluded that there was significant weaknesses in relation to procurement 
and contract management and some improvements in financial sustainability had been 
identified.   
 
They had made three statutory recommendations which had been considered 
alongside an improvement plan, by Full Council on the 18th October 2022.   
 
The Statutory Recommendations Report stated that Internal Audit had highlighted 
several weaknesses over an extended period of time in its reviews of procurement and 
contract management on numerous service contracts, the Council had been slow to 
adequately respond to these issues. 
 
The following recommendations had been made: -  
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



Recommendation 1 
 
To Embed and enforce the Council’s updated contract standing orders and 
procurement rules. Officers in all departments were expected to follow and fully 
evidence compliance with contract standing orders on all procured services. 
 
The Council would ensure that regular refresher training was offered to procuring 
officers, the training video would be available on the intranet the procurements 
guidance and handbook would be regularly updated with any changes notified to all 
managers and updated on the Intranet. Spot checking of ordered goods and services 
made via the intranet to ensure the procurement rules were being followed and 
ongoing. Specialist training on the chest would be provided.  
 
Responsible Officer - Procurement and Contract Lead  
 
Due Date – Immediate  
 
Recommendation 2 
 
To ensure members and officers had robust assurance and reporting arrangements in 
place, for managing all ongoing contracts to enable appropriate and timely action to 
remediate any non-compliance or wider deficiencies. As well as members receiving 
compliance assurance they needed to demonstrate timely action in holding officers to 
account for any non-compliance.   
 
A schedule of significant contracts would be provided to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. Overview and Scrutiny Committee would then select those contracts to be 
reported on through the committee cycle. Regular progress reports to Corporate 
Programme Board would highlight any issues on the contracts register and action 
would be determined. A report on the use of the new procurement exemption process 
would provide assurance to the Audit and Governance Committee.  
 
Responsible Officer – Procurement and Contract Lead & Heads of Service  
 
Due Date – December 2022 
 
Recommendation 3 
 
Review the Councils escalation arrangements up to full council and Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to ensure an adequate and timely response to address significant 
control environment weaknesses. Good governance arrangements were expected via 
Audit & Governance Committee to escalate ongoing significant matters to both Full 
Council and Overview and Scrutiny Committee, to demonstrate effective accountability 
and to drive timely improvements.  
 
The Council would review the outstanding current and historic internal audit 
recommendations and establish the monitoring scope and reporting route with the 
chair of the Audit and Governance Committee. The arrangements for the Audit and 
Governance Committee to refer and escalate significant governance concerns would 
be updated. 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



 
Responsible Officer – Procurement and Contract Lead & Head of Legal and 
Governance.   
 
RESOLVED:- To Receive the Auditors Annual Report and Statutory 
Recommendations Report.  
 
16 – Audit and Governance Improvement Plan and Draft Annual Governance 
Statement.  
 
The Head of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer reported that the Council had 
responsibility for ensuring that Council Business was conducted within the Law and 
proper standards, and that public money was safeguarded and properly accounted for.  
 
Part of the Governance Process was the preparation and publication of an Annual 
Governance Statement which was a self-assessment of how effective they considered 
their governance arrangements to be. Recent Internal and external audit reports had 
led to specific improvement plans being drafted and these had been combined into the 
report as part of the overall review of Governance. 
 
External auditors had made three statutory recommendations for the year ended 31 
March 2021, which the Council had responded to. In addition, following the internal 
audit annual opinion, further recommendations were in the process of being addressed 
and it had been proposed that all actions arising from the improvement planning were 
combined into a single Audit and Governance Improvement Plan. 
 
The draft Annual Governance Statement had been attached to the statement of 
accounts and had been updated for any comment and feedback from Members before 
being presented with the accounts for final sign off. The Council had assessed itself 
against the principles of good governance that were defined in the Local Code of 
Corporate Governance. The Annual Governance Statement had regard to internal and 
external audit concerns with regards to contracts and procurement and further reports 
would be presented to the Committee as appropriate. 
 
Formal monitoring of the implementation of agreed Internal Audit recommendations 
were to be established. Recommendations would be implemented, outstanding, or 
overtaken by events. Monitoring would ensure that timely intervention could occur, and 
recommendations were acted upon. A reporting mechanism would be determined. 
 
RESOLVED:-  
 

1. To note the Audit and Governance Improvement Plan; and 
2. To Consider the draft Annual Governance Statement; and  
3. Agree the proposals as set out in paragraph 3.4 for future reporting. 

 

17 – Work Plan 2022-2023 
 

The Director of Resources reported that the work plan set out the business of the Audit 
and Governance Committee to provide a forward plan and to demonstrate that the 
terms of reference were covered. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



 

The work plan was presented to each Audit and Governance Committee meeting to 
provide a forward plan of business. The work plan was intended to demonstrate that 
the terms of reference were covered.  
 
There were several items highlighted as changed in the report since the previous 
version of the Work Plan presented in July 2022; 
 

 Items 1, 2 and 3 had been assigned to the Director of Resources in terms of 
presentation of reports at Committee. 
 

 Item 4 had been moved to the December meeting; there were discussions with 
colleagues within the Local Government Reorganisation work stream that the 
Director of Resources intended to report to Committee for information. This 
report was usually entirely reflective but would instead present an update on 
the Council’s Internal Audit service proposals heading into Westmorland and 
Furness Council. 
 

 Item 6, the certification of grants had been moved to the December meeting as 
work on the Housing Benefit subsidy claim continued. 

 

 Items 7 and 8 had been merged and Grant Thornton’s report would be 
presented when published. 

 

 Item 11 had been updated to reflect that the Council’s standards arrangements 
remained in place but there would not be an annual review – a review would be 
carried out of any specific provision as needed. 
 

The work plan had been attached as an appendix to the report. 
 

RESOLVED:- To note the Work Plan for 2022-2023. 
 
18 - Borough and Parish/Town Councillor Registers of Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests and Other Registrable Interests 
 
The Head of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer reported that under the 
Localism Act 2011 members were required to disclose those disclosable pecuniary 
interests as specified in regulations and any other interests which the Council should 
decide should be registered in the interests form. 
 
The Borough Council resolved on 17 July 2012 to adopt the other registrable interests 
as detailed in the register of interests form, and the Monitoring Officer was required to 
maintain the register and ensure that it was available for inspection, as required by the 
Act, which also included being available on the Council’s website. When looking at 
Councillors’ details on the website there were links to the register of interests form, 
and to those of the Parish/Town Councillors. 
 
Other Registrable Interests were updated in January 2022 to include “unpaid 
directorships” following revisions to the code of conduct as a result of a review of the 
Council’s standards arrangements and consideration of a new code which was also 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



adopted in January 2022. Following adoption members were asked by email on 1 
February to ensure that any unpaid directorships were registered. 
 
All Members had been asked to confirm that their registers of interests were up to date. 
This had included updating registers where Members were elected to the new 
Westmorland and Furness Council following elections to the new authority in May 
2022. Further emails were sent to all Members including on 9 June 2022, 9 September 
2022 and 27th September 2022 to ensure that their interests forms were up to date to 
reflect any changes. 
 
Co-optees on the Housing Forum had also completed their interests forms, and the 
Monitoring Officer was maintaining a register of interests for those members sitting on 
the Brilliant Barrow Board and those members had also been asked to confirm that 
their registers were up to date. 

 
There were no issues raised as a result of the review. It was indicated that a further 
email would be circulated to those members who were yet to respond to complete the 
return. 
 
RESOLVED:- To note the review of the register of interests. 
 
19 – Employee Register of Gifts and Hospitality  
 

The Head of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer reported that the Officer’s 
code of conduct for Barrow Borough Council Employees provided guidance on 
interests and gifts and hospitality. The Council had Hospitality Guidance which 
provided information as to how employees should treat any offers of gifts and 
hospitality. There was a standard corporate form and offers of hospitality that were 
declined should also be included in any declarations. An update of declarations was 
provided at the meeting. 
 
The review had concluded that there had been no substantial interests declared, None 
of the items on the register appeared to be of significant value therefore it was not 
against the policy for officers to accept. 
 
RESOLVED:- To note the review of the employee register of gifts and hospitality. 
 
20 – Report on Compliments, Customer Feedback and Complaints received 
during 2021/22.  
 
The Head of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer reported that it had been 
agreed at the Audit and Governance Committee held on 1st October 2020 that regular 
reports would be presented on compliments, customer feedback and complaints. All 
complaints and compliments were managed and recorded by the Democratic Services 
Team. 
 
The report presented an update for the period April, 2021 to March, 2022. During the 
last municipal year there had been 57 stage 1 complaints received compared to 43 in 
the previous financial year and 12 appeal stage complaints received compared to 8 in 
the previous financial year. The reasons for the complaints were wide and varied and 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



there was no underlying trend in those two years. The Appendix showed the 
complaints received by service area for both Stage one and Appeal Stage complaints. 
 
In terms of response times 64% of complaints received were answered within the 10 
working day target for stage 1 complaints. The team would continue to work with 
Officers to increase the percentage against the target at stage 1. 
 
The appendix to the report also showed a more detailed breakdown of the stage 1 
complaints by Department and also by complaint category. The data collated was 
useful to identify trends and assist with service improvements. No underlying trends 
had been identified during 2021/22. 
 
During the reporting period 35 compliments were received and noted 
corporately. 
 
The Committee asked if the information on complaints be included in the Service report 
being taken to the next Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
RESOLVED:- To note the Compliments, Customer Feedback and Complaints report. 
 
21 – Local Government Ombudsman Annual Report 2021/22 
 
The Head of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer reported that attached to the 
report Members would find a copy of the Local Government Ombudsman Annual 
Review letter 2021/22. The outcomes of the complaints received had been broken 
down into total numbers received, complaints decided to undertake an investigation 
and the number upheld. 
 
During the reporting period 50% of the complaints that the Local Government 
Ombudsman investigated were upheld, this compared to an average of 51% in similar 
organisations. One decision was upheld and the statistics had been based on a total 
of 2 investigations for the period between 1st April 2021 and 31st March 2022. 
 
For 2021/22 one compliance outcome with Ombudsman recommendations was made 
for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022. The compliance with the Ombudsman 
recommendations rate for this period was reported as 100%. The annual review 
findings were also available on the Local Government Ombudsman website. 
 
The Council operated a two stage complaints process before matters were referred to 
the LGO. 
 
RESOLVED:- To note the Local Government Ombudsman Annual Report 2021/22. 
 
22 – Risk Management  
 
The Director of Resources reported that the Council’s risk management policy was 
due to be reviewed in September 2022; the risk registers were reviewed quarterly, and 
those activities were presented to the Audit and Governance Committee. 
 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



External expertise had been engaged by the Council to review the policy, the format 
of the risk register to align to current best practice, and to provide tailored training. 
 
The risk registers had been circulated wider to the officers on the Corporate 
Programme Board for review; this Board received major/significant projects, contracts, 
and procurement matters. 
 
The Senior Management Team had requested that the Corporate Programme Board 
consider that any risk updates reflected the Board’s business or terms of reference. 
 
The Auditor’s Annual Report highlighted risk management as an area for improvement 
and outlined aspects of the risk register to expand – direction of travel, target risk 
score, future actions required, sources of risk and assurance, and dates of the last and 
next review. 
 
The current risk register format would be reviewed and the processes strengthened to 
recognise and monitor risks. 
 
To illustrate the benefit of expanding the content of the register - the Council held 
separate risk registers for the major funding programmes, such as Town Deal. Risks 
were recognised at both project level and programme level. The delivery of major 
funding programmes was a corporate risk and referencing the Town Deal risk register 
as a source brought assurance into a single repository that would ensure a consistent 
approach/appetite across the Council. 
 
The outcome of the review would be reported to the Executive Committee for approval 
and to the Audit and Governance Committee to provide assurance to those charged 
with governance. 
 
RESOLVED:- To note the update in respect of the Council’s risk management 
arrangements. 
 
23 – Internal Audit Final Report  
 
The Director of Resources reported that Internal Audit had performed audits in 
accordance with the approved Annual Plan which was based on a risk assessment of 
the internal control environment. The final reports completed since the previous 
meeting were presented to the Committee for consideration. 
 
There had been one final report appended for consideration, as follows: - 
 
Housing Benefits, 22-02 – Substantial Assurance 
 
The report contained one Minor issue and one important issue.   
 
All recommendations had been accepted by management unless otherwise stated. 
 
RESOLVED:- To note the Internal Audit Final report. 
 
24 – Internal Audit Progress Report  

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



 
The Director of Resources presented the Internal Audit Progress Report for the period 
1st April, 2022 to 7th October, 2022. 
 
The report contained a statistical summary of the number of audit recommendations 
made up to 7th October, 2022. 
 
There were seven draft contract audits in issue and auditees should be advised that 
these had been expected to be completed for presentation at the December Audit and 
Governance Committee meeting. There were four other audit reports issued in draft 
and again, those would be finalised for presentation at the December meeting. 
 
The Director of Resources was now copied into all draft reports being issued to ensure 
timely management responses are provided. 
 
It had been noted that 64 recommendations had been fully accepted and 10 
recommendation partly accepted.  Each of the recommendations had been assigned 
a Priority Grade 1-3, 1 being major issues and 3 being minor issues.  41 had been 
rated Priority 2 and 28 had been rated Priority 1. 
 
RESOLVED: - To note the Internal Audit Annual Progress Report.   
 
The meeting closed at 3.05 p.m. 

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee 

Thursday, 16 December 2022 

Work Plan 2022-2023  

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources  

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0 Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 The Work Plan sets out the business of the Audit and Governance Committee to 

provide a forward plan and to demonstrate that the terms of reference are 

covered. 

 

1.2  The Work Plan for 2022-2023 is presented for information accompanied by a 

commentary of variations. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee:- 

1) Note the Work Plan for 2022-2023; and 

2) Note that an additional meeting may be called to receive the reports 

relating to the Annual Audit. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The Work Plan is presented at each Audit and Governance Committee meeting  

to provide a forward plan of business and is attached as Appendix 1. 

 

3.2  The Work Plan is intended to demonstrate that the terms of reference are  

covered. 

 

3.3  There are some changes to highlight from the previous version of the Work Plan 

presented in October 2022: 

 

 Item 2, there are no final reports to present however seven contract audit 

reports have been finalised after the Internal Audit progress report being 

prepared. 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 8



 Item 6, the certification of grants is moved to the next meeting as work on the 

Housing Benefit subsidy claim continues. 

 

 Items 17, 20 (partial), and 21 are moved to the next meeting as work on the 

Annual Audit continues. 

 

 Item 29 is added to report progress against the Combined Improvement Plan. 

 

3.4 An update of the Annual Audit progress will be provided at the meeting and an 

additional meeting may be called to receive those reports. 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Consultation is not relevant to the recommendation. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternative options as the report is presented for noting. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be  

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance  

Committee is charged with that role. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report. 

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 Local Government Reorganisation has been reflected in the Work Plan. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report is for noting. 
 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

The Committee does not fulfil 

the terms of reference assigned 

by Full Council. 

The Council cannot 

demonstrate good 

governance. 

Audit and Governance 

Committee work plan. 

 

Contact Officers  

Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk  

Page 14

Agenda Item 8

mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk


 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Audit and Governance Committee - Work Plan 2022-2023 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan 2022-2023

28-Jul 20-Oct 15-Dec 16-Mar
Audit Activity

1.

To consider the head of Internal Audit’s annual 
report and opinion, and a summary of Internal 
Audit activity (actual and planned) and the level 
of assurance it can give over the Council’s 
corporate governance arrangements.

Head of 
Internal 
Audit/Director 
of Resources

Annual report 

2. To consider summaries of specific Internal 
Audit reports.

Head of 
Internal 
Audit/Director 
of Resources

Final reports   

3. To consider the annual Internal Audit plan.
Head of 
Internal 
Audit/Director 

Annual plan

4.
To consider reports dealing with the 
management and performance of the Internal 
Audit provider.

Director of 
Resources Annual review 

5.
To consider reports from Internal Audit on 
agreed recommendations not implemented 
within reasonable timescale.

Head of 
Internal 
Audit/Director 
of Resources

Progress report    

Annual audit letter  

Certification of grants  

7.  To consider specific reports as agreed with the 
external auditor.

Appointed 
Auditor

Progress report and 
sector update

8.
To comment on the scope and depth of 
external audit work and to ensure it gives value 
for money.

Appointed 
Auditor Annual plan

Meeting

Appointed 
Auditor

Terms of Reference Reporting 
Officer Report

Westmorland and Furness Council 
will prepare 2023-2024 Internal Audit 
plan.

6.

Presented within the Audit Progress 
Report and Sector Update.

Audit Progress Report and Sector 
Update as issued.

 To consider the external auditor’s annual letter 
and relevant reports. P

age 17

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan 2022-2023

28-Jul 20-Oct 15-Dec 16-Mar
MeetingTerms of Reference Reporting 

Officer Report

9.  To consider the appointment of the external 
auditor where appropriate.

Director of 
Resources

Appointed auditor report – 
cyclical

10.
To maintain an overview of the Council’s 
Constitution in respect of contract standing 
order, financial regulations.

Director of 
Resources

11.

 To promote and maintain high standards of 
conduct for elected and co-opted members in 
accordance with the relevant provisions of the 
Localism Act.

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

12.

 To determine whether a member of the 
Council or a member of a town or parish 
council within the Borough has failed to comply 
with the relevant Code of Conduct. Where it 
finds that a failure to comply with the code of 
conduct has occurred to determine what action, 
if any, to take.

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

13. To determine any request for a dispensation 
under s.33 of the Localism Act 2011.

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

14.
 To review any issue referred to it by the Chief 
Executive, Director of Resources, Monitoring 
Officer or any Council body.

Various

15.
To monitor the effective development and 
operation of risk management and corporate 
governance in the Council. 

Director of 
Resources Risk management    

Various as required.

The Council's standards arrangements will remain in force until 
31 March 2023, and the arrangements adopted by Westmorland 
and Furness will continue from 1 April 2023.

Report as required.

Regulatory/Standards Framework

No further reports for Barrow Borough 
Council to consider.

Replaced with Westmorland and Furness Council constitution 
work.

Report as required unless otherwise determined under 
delegation.

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan 2022-2023

28-Jul 20-Oct 15-Dec 16-Mar
MeetingTerms of Reference Reporting 

Officer Report

Director of 
Resources Annual review (antifraud)

Complaints and 
compliments report 

Local Government 
Ombudsman letter 

Draft Annual Governance 
Statement 

Final Annual Governance 
Statement (included with 
Statement of Accounts)

 

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

Code of corporate 
governance 

Director of 
Resources

Restricted assurance 
monitoring

Best practice review

Code of conduct and 
guidance

18.

To consider the Council’s arrangement for 
corporate governance and agreeing necessary 
actions to ensure compliance with best 
practice.

Report as required.

Incorporated in Annual Governance 
Statement.

Replaced with Westmorland and 
Furness Council anitfraud policies.

19.
To consider the Council’s compliance with its 
own and other published standards and 
controls.

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

16.
To monitor Council policies on the antifraud 
and anti-corruption strategy and the Council’s 
complaints process. Head of Legal 

and 
Governance

17.
To approve the production of the authority’s 
Annual Governance Statement and to 
recommend its adoption.

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan 2022-2023

28-Jul 20-Oct 15-Dec 16-Mar
MeetingTerms of Reference Reporting 

Officer Report

Going concern 

Accounting policies 

Assurance arrangements 

Statement of Accounts 
with Annual Governance 
Statement

 

Letter of representation  

21.
To consider the external auditor’s report to 
those charged with governance on issues 
arising from the audit of the accounts.

Appointed 
Auditor Audit findings report  

22. To note the Audit and Governance Committee 
terms of reference.

Director of 
Resources Terms of reference 

23. To note the Audit and Governance Committee 
work plan.

Director of 
Resources Work plan   

24. To note the External Audit fees. Director of 
Resources Audit fees 

25. To consider the effectiveness of the Audit and 
Governance Committee.

Director of 
Resources Annual review 

Others

20.

To review and approve the annual Statement 
of Accounts. Specifically, to consider whether 
appropriate accounting policies have been 
followed and whether there are concerns 
arising from the financial statements or from 
the audit that need to be brought to the 
attention of the Council.

Director of 
Resources

Accounts

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Audit and Governance Committee Work Plan 2022-2023

28-Jul 20-Oct 15-Dec 16-Mar
MeetingTerms of Reference Reporting 

Officer Report

26. Review of Borough and Parish councillor 
registers of interests

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

Annual report 

27. Review of employee gifts and hospitality
Head of Legal 
and 
Governance

Annual report 

28.  Annual report of the Chair of the Audit and 
Governance Committee Various Annual report 

29. Audit and Governance Committee 
Improvement Plan

Director of 
Resources Monitoring report   

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee 

15 December  2022 

Audit and Governance Improvement Plan 

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources 

Report Author:  Debbie Storr 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 This report advises members on work undertaken on the Audit and Governance 

Improvement Plan since its meeting on 20 October 2022. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that Audit and Governance Committee note the progress 

against the Audit and Governance Improvement Plan and provide any 

feedback on the same. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The Audit and Governance Improvement Plan brings together actions and 

improvements which address recent external and internal audit recommendations, 

and which have been discussed in previous reports to Council and Audit and 

Governance Committee.   

 

3.2 The Committee has responsibility for monitoring the Improvement Plan which has 

been combined as attached to this report as Appendix 1.  The Plan provides an 

explanation of work undertaken with regards to the actions and whether they have 

been completed or not.   

 

3.3 Under statutory recommendation 2, ensuring members and officers have robust 

assurance and reporting arrangements in place, for managing all ongoing 

contracts and to enable appropriate and timely action to remediate any non-

compliance or wider deficiencies, action 2.1 was for selected contracts to report 

through to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee agreed to take responsibility for this action and have begun by selected 

four contracts for presentation at their December 2022 meeting. 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 9



3.4 Action 2.3 was for procurement exemptions to be provided to Audit and 

Governance Committee.  Appendix 2 sets out a list of exemptions for Members to 

note; these represent the procurement exemption activity for the initial six months 

operating under the new arrangements, including the insourcing of the Waste 

Service.  

 

3.5 Members are asked to receive the report and update and provide any feedback 

on the same. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Management Team and Internal Audit have been consulted through the drafting 

process.  

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternative options.  The report is to consider the Improvement Plan 

and provide any feedback. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Good governance underpins the Council Plan priorities and supports its 

objectives. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no issues to raise arising from this report.   

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 There are no specific legal implications arising from this report.  The report 

demonstrates the action the Council is taking to address the issues raised 

through internal and external audit reports. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 There are no issues to raise.  Best practice will feed through into governance 

arrangements for Westmorland and Furness Council. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No – not applicable 
 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Failure to follow the 

Combined Improvement Plan 

No improvement, 

reputational risk 

Ensure monitoring and 

review of improvement 

planning 

Contact Officers  

Page 24

Agenda Item 9



dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report –  

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Combined Audit and Governance Improvement Plan 

2 List of Exemptions since 1 April 2022 

 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

1 Report to Council 18 October 

2022 on statutory 

recommendations 

2 Report to Audit and 

Governance Committee 20 

October 2022 

www.barrowbc.gov.uk 

  

  

Page 25

Agenda Item 9

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 
Audit and Governance Committee - Combined Improvement Plan 
 
 

Page 1         Last updated 6 December 2022 

Key: 

C=Action Closed 

Source Ref. Improvement Action Owner Due Progress  
Statutory 
Recommendations 

1.1 Embed and enforce 
the Council’s updated 
contract standing 
orders and 
procurement rules. 

Ensure regular refresher 
training for procuring 
officers. Ensure Training 
Video easily accessible on 
the intranet. 

Procurement 
and Contract 
Lead 

Blanket training 
provided March 
2022; refresher 
training 
provided ad-hoc 
and to 
individuals 
where needed.  
Recording 
available from 
September 
2022. 

All procuring officers were 
offered training in March 
2022 on the new 
procurement rules and 
procedures.  Recording of 
the training offered in 
March 2022; available to all 
officers to view as a 
refresher and to new 
officers as part of the 
induction training for those 
involved in procurement. 

C 

Statutory 
Recommendations 

1.2 Embed and enforce 
the Council’s updated 
contract standing 
orders and 
procurement rules. 
 

Ensure guidance and 
handbook up to date and 
any changes notified to all 
managers and updated on 
the intranet. 

Procurement 
and Contract 
Lead 

Handbook up to 
date as at 
9.9.22. 

Guidance and Handbook 
will be reviewed quarterly 
to ensure it is kept up to 
date.  A link to the 
Handbook will be circulated 
to all officers when any 
updates have been applied. 

C 

Statutory 
Recommendations 

1.3 Embed and enforce 
the Council’s updated 
contract standing 
orders and 
procurement rules. 

Spot Check of ordered 
goods and services made 
via intranet to ensure the 
procurement rules are being 
followed. 

Procurement 
and Contract 
Lead 

Quarterly – 
Ongoing 

Identify areas of non-
compliance and offer 
further support/training to 
ensure all procurement 
rules are being followed. 
Further training has been 
offered to Crematorium 
Manager as per their 
request. 

C 

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



 
Audit and Governance Committee - Combined Improvement Plan 
 
 

Page 2         Last updated 6 December 2022 

Key: 

C=Action Closed 

Statutory 
Recommendations 

1.4 Embed and enforce 
the Council’s updated 
contract standing 
orders and 
procurement rules. 

Training on Chest (ProActis). Procurement 
and Contract 
Lead 

Awaiting date 
from ProActis, 
with the 
departure of our 
previous 
Account 
Manager and 
ongoing 
negotiations for 
a contract this is 
taking longer 
than expected.  

All procuring officers will be 
offered training on the 
Chest e-procurement site, 
alongside this a refresher 
of the new procurement 
rules will be run through as 
well. With the Waste 
Services Contracts now 
being delivered by BBC 
training was offered and 
undertaken by the Waste 
Services staff.  

 

Statutory 
Recommendations 

2.1.1 Ensure members and 
officers have robust 
assurance and 
reporting 
arrangements in 
place, for managing 
all ongoing contracts 
and to enable 
appropriate and timely 
action to remediate 
any non-compliance 
or wider deficiencies. 

Schedule of significant 
contracts provided to the 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 

Procurement 
and Contract 
Lead 

In line with 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
workplan. 

Schedule provided to 
identify the scope of 
contracts; Overview and 
Scrutiny to select contracts. 

C 

Statutory 
Recommendations 

2.1.2 Ensure members and 
officers have robust 
assurance and 
reporting 
arrangements in 
place, for managing 
all ongoing contracts 
and to enable 
appropriate and timely 
action to remediate 
any non-compliance 
or wider deficiencies. 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to select those 
contracts to be reported on 
through the committee cycle. 

Heads of 
Service 

In line with 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
workplan. 

Heads of Service to report 
on contract management 
arrangements. 

C 

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



 
Audit and Governance Committee - Combined Improvement Plan 
 
 

Page 3         Last updated 6 December 2022 

Key: 

C=Action Closed 

Statutory 
Recommendations 

2.2 Ensure members and 
officers have robust 
assurance and 
reporting 
arrangements in 
place, for managing 
all ongoing contracts 
and to enable 
appropriate and timely 
action to remediate 
any non-compliance 
or wider deficiencies. 

Regular Progress Report to 
Corporate Programme Board 
to highlight any issues on the 
contracts register. 

Procurement 
and Contract 
Lead 

Commenced 
July 2022 – 
monthly. 

Any actions to be identified 
and fed back to relevant 
responsible officers. 

C 

Statutory 
Recommendations 

2.3 Ensure members and 
officers have robust 
assurance and 
reporting 
arrangements in 
place, for managing 
all ongoing contracts 
and to enable 
appropriate and timely 
action to remediate 
any non-compliance 
or wider deficiencies. 

Procurement exemption 
report to Audit and 
Governance Committee. 

Procurement 
and Contract 
Lead 

December 2022 Report to note the 
procurement exemption 
activity for the initial 6 
months of operating under 
the new arrangements. 

C 

Statutory 
Recommendations 

3.1 Review the Council’s 
escalation 
arrangements up to 
Full Council and 
Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee to ensure 
an adequate and 
timely response to 
address significant 
control environmental 
weaknesses. 

Review the outstanding 
current and historic Internal 
Audit recommendations and 
establish the monitoring 
scope and reporting route 
with the chair of the Audit 
and Governance Committee. 

Director of 
Resources & 
Head of Legal 
and 
Governance 

November 2022 There may be a resource 
required to maintain and 
report on progress – this 
will be dependent upon the 
number of 
recommendations that are 
live and can be actioned. 

C 

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



 
Audit and Governance Committee - Combined Improvement Plan 
 
 

Page 4         Last updated 6 December 2022 

Key: 

C=Action Closed 

Statutory 
Recommendations 

3.2 Review the Council’s 
escalation 
arrangements up to 
Full Council and 
Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee to ensure 
an adequate and 
timely response to 
address significant 
control environmental 
weaknesses. 

Report to review 
arrangements and escalation 
controls to Audit and 
Governance Committee. 

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance 
& Director of 
Resources 

October 2022 Referral and escalation 
routes clarified; this is 
additional to the 
recommendation review 
process at action 3.1. 

C 

Internal Audit 
Reports 2021-2022 

4.1 Recruitment Review Policy of 
References.  Review of HR 
recruitment related 
procedures. 

Head of HR December 2022   

Internal Audit 
Reports 2021-2022 

4.2 Accounts Receivable Ensuring recovery processes 
are resumed and review of 
instalments spreadsheet to 
ensure still appropriate and 
being adhered to.  Review of 
invoice processing and 
monitoring any reasons for 
dispute.  Review of 
processes to complete 
previous audit 
recommendations. 

Financial 
Services 
Manager 

December 2022   

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



 
Audit and Governance Committee - Combined Improvement Plan 
 
 

Page 5         Last updated 6 December 2022 

Key: 

C=Action Closed 

Internal Audit 
Reports 2021-2022 

4.3 COVID Risk 
Assessment 

Review of Control Measures 
and risk assessments. 

Head of Asset 
Management 

Immediate Since this review was 
undertaken, health and 
safety has been supported 
through external Health 
and Safety Advisors who 
are working with the Head 
of Asset Management in 
ensuring that appropriate 
Health and Safety Policies, 
and procedures are in 
place, and will be 
monitored through the 
Health and Safety 
Management Group. 

C 

Internal Audit 
Reports 2021-2022 

4.4 Performance 
Management 

Action being taken to review 
Performance Framework 
and associated procedures – 
Performance framework for 
2018 will be removed from 
the website and replaced 
with an updated document 
that reflects current 
arrangements.  Recovery 
Tracker will continue to be 
published alongside the 
Growing Forward Report.  
More frequent reporting to 
Overview & Scrutiny. 

Director of 
Resources 

October 2022 Service Performance 
Management Framework 
published on the website 
and quarterly reporting has 
commenced. 

C 

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



 
Audit and Governance Committee - Combined Improvement Plan 
 
 

Page 6         Last updated 6 December 2022 

Key: 

C=Action Closed 

Internal Audit 
Reports 2021-2022 

4.5 Insurance Contract Management 
Checklists – process 
revised. and updated 
procedures circulated.  Copy 
of Insurance Policies to be 
filed with Legal Services.  
Contract Register available 
on website and to staff and 
public. 

Director of 
Resources 

July 2022 All completed. C 

Internal Audit 
Reports 2021-2022 

4.6 Housing – Staircase 
cleaning 

The contract register will be 
a standing item on the 
Corporate Programme Board 
to provide further measures 
to ensure that appropriate 
measures can be taken to 
ensure that any time 
constraints can be identified 
and managed appropriately. 

Procurement 
and Contract 
Lead 

Immediate The recommendations 
which relate to matters 
which cannot be undone 
are noted. 
The April 2022 
procurement reset is 
intended to address audit 
concerns with regards to 
procurement and this will 
be tested in future audits. 

C 

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



 
Audit and Governance Committee - Combined Improvement Plan 
 
 

Page 7         Last updated 6 December 2022 

Key: 

C=Action Closed 

Internal Audit 
Reports 2021-2022 

4.7.1 Procurement Explanation have been 
provided as requested.  
Management Team have 
been aware of auditor 
concerns from these and 
previous audits and have 
taken steps to address 
these.  During 2021, a 
Procurement Review was 
undertaken by STAR 
procurement, a local 
authority shared service who 
are national leaders in 
procurement and shared 
services who work with 
organisations to deliver real 
and tangible transformation 
and approvements.  The 
review has led to a revised 
Procurement Strategy 
adopting in January 2022 
and new contract standing 
orders and revised 
guidance/thresholds which 
have been implemented 
since 1 April 2022.  Training 
for procuring officers was 
provided through March 
2022. 
The compliance 
requirements from previous 
audits were clarified in the 
procurement review/reset of 
1 April 2022 and was 
emphasised as part of the 

Senior 
Management 
Team 

December 2022 Statutory recommendation 
improvements contained at 
1.1 to 3.2 

C 

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



 
Audit and Governance Committee - Combined Improvement Plan 
 
 

Page 8         Last updated 6 December 2022 

Key: 

C=Action Closed 

training delivered in March 
2022. 

Internal Audit 
Reports 2021-2022 

4.7.2 Procurement A new contract is being 
prepared for seasonal 
baskets, but this was not 
completed by the December 
31st implementation date 
because the resource was 
diverted to other activities. 
This has been extended for 
another season to allow 
planting for the 
spring/summer baskets and 
summer barrier baskets until 
the end of September. This 
was reported to Executive 
Committee in July 2022 and 
a tender specification is 
currently being drawn up 
prior to the tender being 
issued. 

Head of 
Operational 
Services 

November 2022 Tender advertised.  

Internal Audit 
Reports 2021-2022 

4.8.1 Catering and Cleaning 
at the forum 

Up to date contract register 
made available to the public 
– complete. 

Procurement 
and Contract 
Lead 

Immediate Most recommendations 
relate to matters which 
cannot be undone.  The 
procurement reset is 
intended to address audit 
concerns with regards to 
procurement and this will 
be tested in future audits. 

C 

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



 
Audit and Governance Committee - Combined Improvement Plan 
 
 

Page 9         Last updated 6 December 2022 

Key: 

C=Action Closed 

Internal Audit 
Reports 2021-2022 

4.8.2 Catering and Cleaning 
at the forum 

Ongoing management of 
contract. 

Head of 
Visitor and 
Economy 

Ongoing Calculation of Annual 
Commission payment was 
reviewed, and initial action 
completed and will be kept 
under review for the period 
of the contract.  Contract is 
available to Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee for 
contract management 
reporting. 

C 

Internal Audit 
Reports 2021-2022 

4.9 Cleaning of Barrow 
Town Hall and 
Associated buildings 

Ongoing management of 
contract. 

Head of Asset 
Management 

Ongoing Most recommendations 
relate to matters which 
cannot be undone. 
The procurement reset is 
intended to address audit 
concerns with regards to 
procurement and this will 
be tested in future audits.  
Contract is available to 
Overview and Scrutiny for 
contract management 
reporting. 

C 

Internal Audit 
Reports 2020-2021 

5.1 Leasing Phoenix Business Centre. Commercial 
Estate 
Manager 

March 2023 Lease arrangements are 
under consideration 

 

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



 
Audit and Governance Committee - Combined Improvement Plan 
 
 

Page 10         Last updated 6 December 2022 

Key: 

C=Action Closed 

Annual Audit 
Report 2020-2021 

6.1 Financial sustainability Report the outturn position to 
Members promptly after the 
year end, and ideally in June 
or July once management 
accounts have been closed. 

Director of 
Resources 

Overtaken by 
events for 2021-
2022 

The 2021-2022 accounts 
were closed in August 2022 
having been held whilst a 
revaluation of the Council’s 
assets was completed in 
line with improvements 
identified when closing the 
2019-2020 accounts.  
2021-2022 was reported in 
September 2022 which was 
the first meeting after the 
accounts were closed. 

C 

Annual Audit 
Report 2020-2021 

6.2 Financial sustainability  Include a summary of the 
financial risks within the 
budget, their potential 
impact, and how the risks 
are mitigated within the 
Section 25 statement within 
the annual budget report. 

Director of 
Resources 

Too late for 
2022-2023 

The improvement in report 
content is supported and 
shall be raised with 
Westmorland and Furness 
Council. 

C 

Annual Audit 
Report 2020-2021 

6.3 Financial sustainability Refine formal reporting to 
members on sensitivity 
analysis and scenario 
planning, undertaken on key 
assumptions and estimates, 
as part of the development 
of the annual budget and 
MTFS. 

Director of 
Resources 

Too late for 
2022-2023 

The improvement in report 
content is supported and 
shall be raised with 
Westmorland and Furness 
Council. 

C 

Annual Audit 
Report 2020-2021 

6.4 Financial sustainability Provide a clear distinction 
between discretionary and 
non-discretionary spending 
in the budgetary information 
presented to members and 
ensure it is published on the 
website. 

Director of 
Resources 

Too late for 
2022-2023 

The improvement in report 
content is supported and 
shall be raised with 
Westmorland and Furness 
Council. 

C 

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



 
Audit and Governance Committee - Combined Improvement Plan 
 
 

Page 11         Last updated 6 December 2022 

Key: 

C=Action Closed 

Annual Audit 
Report 2020-2021 

6.5 Financial sustainability Develop or update the 
workforce plan adequately to 
reflect the Council’s 
operational requirements 
and service delivery 
objectives. 

Head of HR November 2022 Workforce Strategy 
Statement approved by the 
Executive Committee. 

C 

Annual Audit 
Report 2020-2021 

6.6 Governance Strengthen the risk 
management framework 
further by developing a full 
training programme for all 
levels of staff, providing 
greater clarity of the 
relationship between all the 
risk registers used across 
the Council, including 
strategic, operational, project 
and partnership risk.  
Develop the risk register to 
align with best practice to 
ensure adequate information 
is reported to members. 

Director of 
Resources 

January 2023 The Council has engaged 
an external specialist to 
review the current policy 
and corporate risk register; 
training will follow.  The 
Corporate Programme 
Board has oversight of 
project risk registers; 
Senior Management Team 
are part of that Board. 

 

Annual Audit 
Report 2020-2021 

6.7 Governance Implement regular 
monitoring and reporting of 
audit recommendations to 
the Audit and Governance 
Committee with updates 
from all responsible officers 
including the S151 officer 
and Monitoring Officer. 

  See action 3.1 C 

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



 
Audit and Governance Committee - Combined Improvement Plan 
 
 

Page 12         Last updated 6 December 2022 

Key: 

C=Action Closed 

Annual Audit 
Report 2020-2021 

6.8 Other Update the Data Quality 
policy and guidance to 
reflect best practice, 
organisational structure, and 
the processes required for 
the producing and reporting 
of performance management 
information. 

Head of Legal 
and 
Governance 

Overtaken by 
events 

The Council has not 
established a Data Quality 
policy; there is an ongoing 
work package to establish 
information management 
policies for Westmorland 
and Furness Council. 

C 

CIPFA Financial 
Management Code 

7.1.1 The responsibilities of 
the chief finance 
officer and leadership 
team. 

The leadership team can 
demonstrate that the 
services provided by the 
authority provide value for 
money. 

  See actions 1.1 to 3.2 C 

CIPFA Financial 
Management Code 

7.1.2 The responsibilities of 
the chief finance 
officer and leadership 
team. 

The authority complies with 
the CIPFA Statement on the 
Role of the Chief Finance 
Officer (CFO) in Local 
Government (2016). 

Director of 
Resources 

Ongoing Recruit to complete the 
Finance establishment to 
provide the CFO with 
sufficient and relevant 
resources. 

C 

CIPFA Financial 
Management Code 

7.2.1 Governance and 
financial management 
style. 

The Council applies 
CIPFA/SOLACE "Delivering 
Good Governance in Local 
Government: Framework 
(2016)". 

Senior 
Management 
Team 

Ongoing Where reviews of the 
corporate governance 
arrangements reveal 
improvement 
recommendations, action is 
planned that will ensure 
effective governance in 
future. 

C 

CIPFA Financial 
Management Code 

7.2.2 Governance and 
financial management 
style. 

The Financial Management 
style of the Council supports 
financial sustainability. 

Financial 
Services 
Manager 

Ongoing Refresher training for 
officers with financial 
responsibilities has been 
identified with the outcome 
of improving financial 
literacy and strengthening 
the accountability of budget 
managers and senior 
officers, which supports 
financial sustainability. 

 

P
age 38

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



 
Audit and Governance Committee - Combined Improvement Plan 
 
 

Page 13         Last updated 6 December 2022 

Key: 

C=Action Closed 

CIPFA Financial 
Management Code 

7.3.1 Medium to long-term 
financial 
management. 

The authority has carried out 
a credible and transparent 
financial resilience 
assessment. 

Director of 
Resources 

Impacted by 
unitisation 

Make better use of 
benchmarking and the 
CIPFA resilience index 
when shaping the MTFP. 

C 

CIPFA Financial 
Management Code 

7.3.2 Medium to long-term 
financial 
management. 

The authority understands its 
prospects for financial 
sustainability in the longer 
term and has reported this 
clearly to members. 

Director of 
Resources 

Impacted by 
unitisation 

Formalise long term 
financial 
planning/modelling. 

C 

CIPFA Financial 
Management Code 

7.3.3 Medium to long-term 
financial 
management. 

The authority complies with 
the CIPFA Prudential Code 
for Capital Finance in Local 
Authorities. 

Director of 
Resources 

Impacted by 
unitisation 

The narrative in the capital 
strategy could be enhanced 
further with linkage to the 
Strategic Asset 
Management Plan. 

C 

CIPFA Financial 
Management Code 

7.3.4 Medium to long-term 
financial 
management. 

The authority has a rolling 
multi-year medium-term 
financial plan consistent with 
sustainable service plans. 

Head of Asset 
Management 

Ongoing The Corporate Landlord 
approach will be 
implemented from 2022. 

C 

CIPFA Financial 
Management Code 

7.4.1 Monitoring financial 
performance. 

The leadership team act 
using reports, enabling it to 
identify and correct emerging 
risks to its budget strategy 
and financial sustainability. 

  See action 4.4 C 

CIPFA Financial 
Management Code 

7.4.2 Monitoring financial 
performance. 

The chief finance officer has 
personal responsibility for 
ensuring that the statutory 
accounts provided to the 
local authority comply with 
the Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in 
the United Kingdom. 

Director of 
Resources 

Ongoing The Council will prepare 
the Accounts within 
statutory deadlines and 
working papers will be 
produced to a high 
standard. The Council will 
continue close working with 
the external auditors to 
implement any audit 
recommendations. 

C 

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



 
Audit and Governance Committee - Combined Improvement Plan 
 
 

Page 14         Last updated 6 December 2022 

Key: 

C=Action Closed 

CIPFA Financial 
Management Code 

7.4.3 Monitoring financial 
performance. 

The presentation of the final 
outturn figures and variations 
from budget allow the 
leadership team to make 
strategic financial decisions. 

  See actions 4.4 and 6.1 C 

 

 

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



Exemptions List – 06/12/2022 

Since implementing the new Procurement Rules on 1st April 2022, with the invention of the new 

Exemption Process we have recorded 22 completed exemption request forms. This is higher than we 

originally anticipated in part due to the extenuating circumstances around LGR and the Waste 

services now being delivered internally.  

Supplier (Exemption)  Reason for Exemption 

Democracy Counts The required number of quotations was 
sought, but due to a lack of response an 
exemption was granted to award to the 
supplier that quoted.  

Infoaktiv A competitive tender process was run 
however due to staffing changes the award 
was delayed/late, and therefore required 
an exemption to award rather than re-run 
the tender process.  

32 West Due to being the incumbent provider of the 
Council’s wider communication support, an 
exemption was granted to add the Waste 
Service communications into the existing 
provision. 

Arcus Consulting The remit of the capital project expanded, 
and the construction market was impacted 
by the Covid-19 Pandemic.  The decision 
was made to increase the contract rather 
than re-tender. 

Cumbria Roofing 
 

Urgent repair was required to an 
operational property. 

Heimdal The required number of companies were 
considered through a technical appraisal 
carried out by IT.  The product chosen was 
the best fit for the Council and for 
continuation into Westmorland and 
Furness.  An analysis of functionality and 
cost informed the exemption.  

Statisnet ltd. This is a proprietary IT security solution, and 
the exemption was granted to recognise 
the direct award.  

Growing Concerns Exemption granted to allow contract to co-
terminate for LGR purposes. 

Associated Cleaning Services Exemption granted to allow contract to co-
terminate for LGR purposes. 

Emchia Specialised urgent works in preparation for 
the Levelling Up Fund project.  

Architecture Unknown To obtain Piel Island specific surveys and 
planning pre-work already undertaken by 
the supplier for Council on another project, 
an exemption was approved.  

Road Haulage Software (Waste) Continuation of Vehicle monitoring 
software for all Waste Vehicles, granted 

Page 41

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



due to software being bespoke for the 
vehicles.  

Garage and MRF Equipment – 12 suppliers 
(Waste) 
 

Blanket exception for Parts and repairs to 
the fleet vehicles for the Waste Services. 
Granted as this would ensure the vehicles 
aren’t delayed or taken off road.  

SupaTrak (Waste) Granted as it is essential to ability to deliver 
waste services.  

MONKS (Waste) 
  

Granted as it is essential to ability to deliver 
waste services. 

CP Davidson RCV. (Waste) 
 

Granted as it is essential to ability to deliver 
waste services. 

Avery Weigh Tronix (Waste) 
 

Granted as it is essential to ability to deliver 
waste services. 

Dawson Sweeper (Waste) 
 

Granted as it is essential to ability to deliver 
waste services. 

Garage Diagnostic Equipment (Waste) 
 

Continuation of Vehicle monitoring 
software.  

ARCO PPE (Waste) 
 

Waste Services – Exemption request 
granted on basis of timeframe and urgent 
need to provide appropriate PPE to staff on 
first day with Barrow Borough Council. 

 

Page 42

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council 

Audit and Governance Committee 

Thursday, 16 December 2022 

Audit and Governance Committee Effectiveness  

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources 

Report Author:  Director of Resources  

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 A review of Audit and Governance Committee effectiveness has been carried 

 out; the review concluded that the Audit and Governance Committee is effective 

in carrying out the terms of reference assigned by the Constitution of the Council. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee endorse the 

review of effectiveness.  

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 A review of the Audit and Governance Committee effectiveness has been 

undertaken, the review is based upon the CIPFA Toolkit for Local Authority Audit 

Committees.  

 

3.2 The completed checklist is attached at Appendix 1.  There are no issues or 

actions arising from the review and the Members of the Audit and Governance 

Committee are recommended to endorse the review. 

 

3.3 Members are reminded to note that the Council’s Combined Improvement Plan is 

entrusted to the Audit and Governance Committee for monitoring and delivery; 

this includes the corporate actions to address the weaknesses highlighted in the 

statutory recommendations report. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1  The purpose of this report is for the Director of Resources to consult with the 

Audit and Governance Committee. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

Page 43

Agenda Item 10



5.1 There are no alternative options to present; the review is evidenced. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 

Committee is charged with that role. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications from the 

recommendation. 

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 There are no legal implications from the recommendation. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 There are no impacts on Local Government Reorganisation. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, the recommendation has 
no direct Equality and Diversity implications. 

 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

The Committee does not fulfil 

the terms of reference 

assigned by Full Council. 

The Council cannot 

demonstrate good 

governance. 

Audit and Governance 

Committee work plan. 

 

Contact Officers  

Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Audit and Governance Committee – Self Assessment Checklist 

 

Page 44

Agenda Item 10

mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk


Audit & Governance Committee 
Self-assessment checklist 
 
 
Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Action 

ESTABLISHMENT, OPERATION AND DUTIES 

Role and remit 

1 
Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee have written terms 
of reference 

Y   
Constitution of the 
Council. 

1 

Do the terms of reference 
cover the core functions of an 
Audit & Governance 
Committee as identified in the 
CIPFA guidance? 

Y   
Constitution of the 
Council. 

1 
Are the terms of reference 
approved by the Council and 
reviewed periodically. 

Y   
Annual Constitution 
review. 

1 

Has the Audit & Governance 
Committee been provided 
with sufficient membership, 
authority and resources to 
perform its role effectively and 
independently? 

Y    

1 

Can the Audit & Governance 
Committee access other 
committees and full council as 
necessary?  

Y    

2 
Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee periodically 
assess its own effectiveness? 

Y    

2 

Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee make a formal 
annual report on its work and 
performance during the year 
to full council? 

Y   

Audit & Governance 
Committee reports to 
every Full Council.  An 
annual report has been 
introduced into the Work 
Plan. 

Membership, induction and training 

1 

Has the membership of the 
Audit & Governance 
Committee been formally 
agreed and a quorum set? 

Y   Quorum 3 Members. 

1 
Is the chair independent of the 
executive function? 

Y   

The Chair cannot also be 
an ordinary member of 
the Executive 
Committee. 

Page 45

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



Audit & Governance Committee 
Self-assessment checklist 
 
 
Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Action 

1 

Has the Audit & Governance 
Committee chair either 
previous knowledge of, or 
received appropriate training 
on, financial and risk 
management. 

Y   

Experienced Audit & 
Governance Committee 
Chair. 
 

1 
Are new Audit & Governance 
Committee members provided 
with an appropriate induction? 

Y    

1 

Have all Members’ skills and 
experiences been assessed 
and training given for 
identified gaps? 

Y   
Personal Development 
Plans. 

1 
Has each Member declared 
his or her business interest? 

Y   

Register of interests.   
 
Declarations at meeting 
are a standard agenda 
item. 

2 
Are Members sufficiently 
independent of the other key 
committees of the Council? 

Y   

Audit & Governance 
Committee Members are 
not ordinary Members on 
the Executive Committee 
or the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. 

Meetings 

1 
Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee meet regularly? 

Y   Quarterly. 

1 
Do the terms of reference set 
out the frequency of the 
meetings? 

Y   

The original 
establishment of the 
Audit & Governance 
Committee set the 
quarterly meetings – 
Executive Committee 28 
March 2007. 

1 

Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee calendar meet the 
authority’s business needs, 
governance needs, and the 
financial calendar? 

Y   
Audit & Governance 
Committee work plan. 

1 

Are Members attending 
meetings on a regular basis 
and if not, is appropriate 
action taken? 

Y   

The Audit & Governance 
Committee chair takes 
appropriate action to 
ensure Members attend. 

Page 46

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



Audit & Governance Committee 
Self-assessment checklist 
 
 
Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Action 

1 
Are meetings free and open 
without political influences 
being displayed? 

Y    

1 
Does the authority’s S151 
Officer or deputy attend all 
meetings? 

Y    

1 

Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee have the benefit of 
attendance of appropriate 
officers at its meetings? 

Y    

INTERNAL CONTROL 

1 

Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee consider the 
Annual Governance 
Statement (as required by the 
Accounts & Audit 
Regulations) including the 
review of the effectiveness of 
the system of internal audit? 

Y    

1 

Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee have responsibility 
for review and approval of the 
AGS and does it consider it 
separately from the accounts? 

Y    

1 
Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee consider how 
meaningful the AGS is? 

Y    

1 

Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee satisfy itself that 
the system of internal control 
has operated effectively 
throughout the reporting 
period? 

Y   
Annual Internal Audit 
report and Annual 
Governance Statement. 

1 

Has the Audit & Governance 
Committee considered how it 
integrates with other 
committees that may have 
responsibility for risk 
management? 

Y   

Executive Committee set 
the risk management 
policy.  Audit & 
Governance Committee 
monitor the risk registers. 

Page 47

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



Audit & Governance Committee 
Self-assessment checklist 
 
 
Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Action 

1 

Has the Audit & Governance 
Committee (with delegated 
responsibility) or the full 
council adopted “Managing 
the Risk of Fraud – Actions to 
Counter Fraud and 
Corruption?” 

Y   

The Council’s anti-fraud 
and corruption policies 
address the 
requirements of the 
CIPFA guidance, 
adapted to the Council. 

1 

Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee ensure that the 
“Actions to Counter Fraud and 
Corruption” are being 
implemented? 

Y   

Fraud hotline.  
Reminders to staff about 
the whistleblowing policy. 
Hotline statistics reported 
quarterly. 

2 

Is the Audit & Governance 
Committee made aware of the 
role of risk management in the 
preparation of the internal 
audit plan? 

Y   
This is explained with 
each presented Internal 
Audit Annual Plan. 

2 

Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee review the 
authority’s strategic risk 
register at least annually? 

Y    

2 
Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee monitor how the 
authority assesses its risk? 

Y    

2 

Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee’s terms of 
reference include oversight of 
the risk management 
process? 

Y    

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND REGULATORY MATTERS 

1 

Is the Audit & Governance 
Committee’s role in the 
consideration and/or approval 
of the annual accounts clearly 
defined? 

Y    

Page 48

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



Audit & Governance Committee 
Self-assessment checklist 
 
 
Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Action 

1 

Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee consider 
specifically: 

 The suitability of 
accounting policies and 
treatments 

 Major judgements 
made 

 Large write-offs 

 Changes in accounting 
treatment 

 The reasonableness of 
accounting estimates  

The narrative aspects of 
reporting? 

Y   
Reported by the Section 
151 Officer. 

1 

Is an Audit & Governance 
Committee meeting 
scheduled to receive the 
external auditor’s report to 
those charged with 
governance including a 
discussion of proposed 
adjustments to the accounts 
and other issues arising from 
the audit? 

Y    

1 

Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee review 
management’s letter of 
representation? 

Y    

2 

Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee annually review 
the accounting policies of the 
authority? 

Y    

2 

Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee gain an 
understanding of 
management’s procedures for 
preparing the authority’s 
annual accounts? 

Y    

Page 49

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



Audit & Governance Committee 
Self-assessment checklist 
 
 
Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Action 

2 

Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee have a 
mechanism to keep it aware 
of topical legal and regulatory 
issues, for example by 
receiving circulars and 
through training? 

Y   

Reports to the committee 
from officers and from 
the external auditors.  
Member Personal 
Development Plans. 

INTERNAL AUDIT 

1 

Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee approve, annually 
and in detail, the internal audit 
strategic and annual plans 
including consideration of 
whether the scope of internal 
audit work addresses the 
authority’s significant risks? 

Y    

1 

Does internal audit have an 
appropriate reporting line to 
the Audit & Governance 
Committee? 

Y    

1 

Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee receive periodic 
reports from the internal audit 
service including an annual 
report from the Head of 
Internal Audit? 

Y    

1 

Are follow-up audits by 
internal audit monitored by the 
Audit & Governance 
Committee and does the 
committee consider the 
adequacy of implementation 
of recommendations? 

Y   

Previous 
recommendations are 
reviewed by Internal 
Audit and priority 1 
recommendations are 
monitored and reported. 

1 

Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee hold periodic 
private discussions with the 
Head of Internal Audit? 

Y   
If the need arises/by 
request. 

1 
Is there appropriate 
cooperation between the 
internal and external auditors? 

Y   
If the need arises/by 
request. 

1 

Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee review the 
adequacy of internal audit 
staffing and other resources? 

Y   
Internal Audit Annual 
Plan; days and coverage. 

Page 50

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



Audit & Governance Committee 
Self-assessment checklist 
 
 
Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Action 

1 

Has the Audit & Governance 
Committee evaluated whether 
its internal audit service 
complies with CIPFA’s Code 
of Practice for Internal Audit 
and Local Government in the 
United Kingdom? 

Y   

A review of the new 
Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards has 
been completed. 

2 

Are internal audit performance 
measures monitored by the 
Audit & Governance 
Committee? 

Y    

2 

Has the Audit & Governance 
Committee considered the 
information it wishes to 
receive from internal audit? 

Y   
Additional information is 
provided on request. 

EXTERNAL AUDIT 

1 

Do the external auditors 
present and discuss their 
audit plans and strategy with 
the Audit & Governance 
Committee (recognising the 
statutory duties of external 
audit)? 

Y    

1 

Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee hold periodic 
private discussions with the 
external auditor? 

Y   As required. 

1 

Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee review the 
external auditor’s annual 
report to those charged with 
governance? 

Y    

1 

Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee ensure that 
officers are monitoring action 
taken to implement external 
audit recommendations? 

Y    

1 

Are reports on the work of 
external audit and other 
inspection agencies 
presented to the committee? 

Y    

1 

Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee assess the 
performance of external 
audit? 

Y   

Locally yes, including 
feedback from officers.  
The PSAA have a role as 
the sector-led body. 

Page 51

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



Audit & Governance Committee 
Self-assessment checklist 
 
 
Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Action 

1 

Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee consider and 
approve the external audit 
fee? 

Y    

ADMINISTRATION 

Agenda management 

1 

Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee have a designated 
secretary from Democratic 
Services? 

Y    

1 

Are agenda papers circulated 
in advance of meetings to 
allow adequate preparation by 
Audit & Governance 
Committee members? 

Y    

2 
Are outline agendas planned 
one year ahead to cover 
issues on a cyclical basis? 

Y   Annual work plan. 

2 

Are inputs for Any Other 
Business formally requested 
in advance from committee 
member, relevant officers, 
internal and external audit? 

Y   
The agenda is open until 
the published deadline. 

Papers 

1 

Do reports to the Audit & 
Governance Committee 
communicate relevant 
information at the right 
frequency, time, and in a 
format that is effective? 

Y    

2 

Does the Audit & Governance 
Committee issue guidelines 
and/or a pro forma concerning 
the format and content of the 
papers to be presented? 

Y   
Format set for all Council 
and Committee 
meetings. 

Actions arising 

1 
Are minutes prepared and 
circulated promptly to the 
appropriate people? 

Y    

1 

Is a report on matters arising 
made and minuted at the 
Audit & Governance 
Committee’s next meeting? 

Y   
Minutes and resolutions 
of the meeting. 

Page 52

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



Audit & Governance Committee 
Self-assessment checklist 
 
 
Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Action 

1 
Do action points indicate who 
is to perform what and by 
when? 

Y   
Minutes and resolutions 
of the meeting. 

 
 

Page 53

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee 

Thursday, 16 December 2022 

Internal Audit Progress Report  

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources  

Report Author:  Director of Resources  

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0      Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  Internal Audit performs audits in accordance with the approved Annual Plan 

which is based on a risk assessment of the internal control environment. 

 

1.2  The progress report for the period 1 April 2022 to 2 December 2022 is presented 

in this report. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee:- 

1) Note the Internal Audit progress report; 

2) Note the subsequent closure of the contract audits noted as drafts in 

the progress report; and 

3) Note the monitoring of previous priority 1 recommendations. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1  This report presents the Internal Audit progress report for the period 1 April 2022 

to 2 December 2022 which is attached as Appendix 1. 

 

3.2 There are seven draft contract audits in issue (section 8 of Appendix 1 refers) 

and those have been closed after the progress report was prepared. 

 

3.3 There are four other audit reports issued in draft and it has not been possible to 

close those in time for this progress report.  The relevant Heads of Service have 

been instructed to prioritise those for closure in December. 

 

3.4 The Director of Resources is now copied into all draft reports being issued to 

ensure timely management responses are provided. 

 

Page 55

Agenda Item 11



3.5 The response rate from management is a cumulative measure that cannot be 

fully recovered.  The finalisation of the outstanding draft audits will reflect 

improvement and newly issued audit reports responses are monitored by the 

Director of Resources with the intention of achieving the 20 day target. 

 

3.6 Internal Audit hold a database of all recommendations - added as reports are 

issued.  The recommendations remain on the list until an area is reviewed again; 

recommendations may be completed, overtaken by events, or outstanding. 

 

3.7 The priority 1 recommendations currently open have all been reviewed, and the 

Management update is attached as Appendix 2.  There are no outstanding 

actions, these recommendations will be reviewed as part of the cyclical audit 

apart from Barrow Playing Field Users as that arrangement has ended. 

 

4.0  Consultation  

 

4.1  The Internal Audit annual plan is agreed by the Audit and Governance 

Committee.  

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

 

5.1  There are no alternative options as the report is presented for noting.  

 

6.0  Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

 

6.1  In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 

Committee is charged with that role.  

 

7.0  Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

 

7.1  There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report.  

 

Legal  

7.2  There are no legal implications arising from this report.  

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.3 This report is for information.  

 

Local Government Reorganisation  

7.4  There are no implications regarding Local Government Reorganisation.  

 

Risk  

Page 56

Agenda Item 11



Risk Consequence Controls required 

Internal controls are 

inadequate. 

Compliance cannot be 

demonstrated and 

assurance cannot be 

given. 

Internal Audit annual plan. 

 

Contact Officers 

Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk   

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Internal Audit Progress Report 

2 Priority 1 Recommendations 

  

Page 57

Agenda Item 11

mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 

 

April  to December 2022 

 

2022/23 

 

 

 

Page 59

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

2 

CONTENTS Page 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 3 

1. STATISTICAL SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 4 

2. ACCEPTED PRIORITY 1 RECOMMENDATIONS 5 

3. REJECTED RECOMMENDATIONS 6 

4. INTERNAL AUDIT COVERAGE: 7 

5. CONTRACT AUDIT 9 

6. CLASSIFICATIONS 10 

7.    PERFORMANCE 11 

8.    DRAFT REPORTS ISSUED 11 

APPENDIX 1 – RESTRICTED ASSURANCE AUDITS 12 

APPENDIX 2 - NO ASSURANCE AUDITS 13  

 

 

 

Page 60

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

3 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

Purpose 

The purpose of the report is to update Members of the Council’s Audit Committee on: 

 Internal Audit work performed up to 2nd December 2022, including final reports 
issued relating to a previous reporting period; and 

 Significant issues that have arisen during this period as a result of our work. 

 
 

Content 

The information is presented in the following schedules: 

1. A Statistical Summary of Recommendations 

 This schedule includes all audit recommendations to which Council 
management have responded between 1st April 2022 and 2nd December 2022.  
The figures are analysed according to the ‘priority’ of the recommendations, 
and the extent to which each has been accepted by management for action. 

2. Accepted Priority 1 Recommendations 

 This schedule provides details of all major recommendations which have been 
accepted by management. 

3. Rejected Recommendations 

 This schedule provides details of major and significant (i.e. Priority 1 and 
Priority 2) recommendations, which have been rejected by Council 
Management. 

4. Audit Coverage 

 Details of audit assignments carried out in the period, including any checks on 
external partner organisations. 

5. Classifications of Assurance and Recommendations 

 An explanation of the classifications used for prioritising recommendations and 
assessing levels of assurance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 61

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

4 

1. STATISTICAL SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

The following table summarises the number of audit recommendations we have made 
in our final reports issued up to 2nd December 2022; analysed by their priority, 
including whether accepted by management. 

 

Recommendations Total Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3 

Made 74 28 41 5 

Fully Accepted 64 23 36 5 

Partly Accepted 10 5 5 - 

Not Accepted 0 - - - 

 

 

 

 

Page 62

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

5 

2. ACCEPTED PRIORITY 1 RECOMMENDATIONS 

There have been no Priority One recommendations made since the previous Audit 
Committee. 

 

 

Page 63

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

6 

3. REJECTED RECOMMENDATIONS  

 

3.1 PRIORITY ONE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

There have been no rejected Priority One recommendations during the reporting 
period. 

 

3.2 PRIORITY TWO RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

There have been no rejected Priority Two recommendations during the reporting 
period. 

 

 

Page 64

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

7 

4. INTERNAL AUDIT COVERAGE: 

APRIL – DECEMBER 2022 

Report 

Number 
Audit Assignment 

System 

Significance 

Band 

Status Assurance 

 ANNUAL AUDITS    

22-01 Income Collection 1 Ongoing  

22-02 Housing Benefits 1 Final Substantial 

22-03 
Council Tax & Council Tax 
Support 

1 Commenced  

22-04 Business Rates (NNDR) 1 Commenced  

22-05 Risk Management 1 
Fieldwork 
complete 

 

22-07 Fraud and Corruption Survey 2   

22-08 Performance Management 2 Final Restricted 

22-09 Budgetary Control 2   

22-10 Treasury Management 2   

22-11 Car Park Meter Income 2 Draft Substantial 

22-12 Payroll (incl Expenses) 2 Draft Substantial 

22-13 Accounts Receivable 2   

22-14 Corporate Control/Governance 2 On going  

22-15 
Main Accounting System and 
Periodic Controls 

2 
Q2  

In progress 
 

22-16 Procurement (inc. Ordering) 2   

22-17 Accounts Payable 2   

22-18 
Standing Orders/ Financial 
Regs/Council Plans & Policies 

2   

22-19 NFI responsibilities - On going  

22-21 Pulse Soccer Review - On going  

22-22 Benefit Certification - On going  

     

 
COMMUNITY ORGANISATIONS 

AND MAYOR’S ACCOUNT 
   

- Hawcoat -   

- Abbotsvale - In progress  

- Dalton - Complete  

Page 65

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

8 

Report 

Number 
Audit Assignment 

System 

Significance 

Band 

Status Assurance 

     

 IT ENVIRONMENT AUDITS    

 Implementation Review    

     

22-06 IMPLEMENTATION REVIEW    

     

     

     

 

Fraud Hotline Calls 

 Revenues/ 

Benefit related 
Staff Related Other Total 

2022/23 

(April – 
December) 

26 0 16 42 

2021/22 

(Full year) 
14 0 46 60 

 

 

Page 66

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

9 

5. CONTRACT AUDIT 

Report 

Number 
Audit Assignment Status 

Assurance/ 

Comment 

CR119 Crematorium  - New Cremators Draft Restricted  

CR123 Harding Rise Draft Restricted 

CR132 
Portland Walk Car Park 
Maintenance 

Draft Restricted 

CR134 
Cleaning and Key holding of 
Public Conveniences, Stairwells 
and Bus Stops 2020-22 

Draft  No Assurance 

CR135 Future High Street Consultancy Draft No Assurance 

CR139 Electrical Reactive Maintenance Draft Restricted 

CR140 
Heating, Ventilation & Air 
Conditioning Servicing & 
Maintenance 

Draft Restricted 

CR120 
Cleaning of Barrow Town Hall 
and Associated Buildings 2021-
23 

Final No Assurance 

CR133 Insurance Final Restricted  

CR136 Forum catering & cleaning  Final No Assurance 

CR141 Housing – Staircase Cleaning Final Restricted 

    

 

 

Page 67

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

10 

6. CLASSIFICATIONS 

6.1   Classification of Assurance Levels 

At the conclusion of each audit, we give an overall opinion on the level of assurance, 
which we consider is provided by the controls in place within the system audited.  The 
following classification of assurance levels has been adopted: 
 

Level Definition 

1. Unqualified Assurance The controls appear to be consistently applied. 

2. Substantial Assurance Evidence was identified to suggest that the 
level of non-compliance with controls may put 
some of the system objectives at risk. 

3. Restricted Assurance The level of non-compliance identified places 
the system objectives at risk. 

4. None Significant non-compliance with controls was 
identified leaving the system vulnerable to 
error and abuse. 

 

 

 

6.2 Priority of Recommendations 

Our audit recommendations are categorised by three priority levels: - 

Priority 1 Major issues that we consider need to be brought to the attention of senior 
management. 

Priority 2 Important issues which should be addressed by management in their area 
of responsibility. 

Priority 3 Detailed issues of a relatively minor nature. 

 

 

 

Page 68

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

   

 

11 

7. PERFORMANCE 

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAs) require Internal Audit to be 
measured in terms of performance.  The indicators below provide information over the 
arrangements and effectiveness of Internal Audit. 

Indicator 2022/23 

1 Percentage of Draft reports issued within 10 working days 
of completion of audit fieldwork. 

100% 

2 Percentage of Management Responses received within 
20 working days of issue of the Draft report. 33% 

3 Percentage of Final reports issued within 10 working days 
of receipt of management response. 100% 

4 Percentage of Priority 1 and Priority 2 Recommendations 
acceptable to the audit client. 100% 

 

8. Draft Reports issued 

Ref Audit Date issued 

21-06 Cash Floats and Receipting Controls 29 March 2022 

21-16 Main Accounting System and Periodic Controls 13 July 2022 

CR123 Harding Rise 26 July 2022 

CR134 
Cleaning and Key holding of Public Conveniences, 
Stairwells and Bus Stops 2020-22 

26 July 2022 

21-01 Income Collection 8 August 2022 

21-10 Budgetary Control 9 August 2022 

CR119 Crematorium - New Cremators 11 August 2022 

CR132 Portland Walk Car Park Maintenance 11 August 2022 

CR139 Electrical Reactive Maintenance 1 September 2022 

CR140 
Heating, Ventilation & Air Conditioning Servicing & 
Maintenance 

1 September 2022 

CR135 Future High Street Consultancy 
21 September 
2022 

22-12 Car Park Meter Income 9 November 2022 

22-13 Payroll 22 November 2022 

 

Page 69

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

   

 

12 

 

APPENDIX 1 – RESTRICTED ASSURANCE AUDITS 

 

 
Recommendations Previous 

Recommendations Total Date Issued 

Ref Audit P1 P2 P3 P1 P2 P3 

CR141 Housing 2019-23 Staircase Cleaning  3 4     7 15 March 2022 

20-25 
Covid Risk Assessment Post Assurance 
Review 

2 8 1    11 24 March 2022 

CR133 Insurance  2 5     7 18 July 2022 

21-09 Performance Management 5 4     9 18 July 2022 

 

  

P
age 70

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 1



 

   

 

13 

APPENDIX 2 – NO ASSURANCE AUDITS 

 

 
Recommendations Previous 

Recommendations Total Date Issued 

Ref Audit P1 P2 P3 P1 P2 P3 

21-17 Procurement  3 3  4 1  11 13 July 2022 

CR136 
Catering and Cleaning at the Forum and Dock 
Museum 2021-26 

6 4     10 15 July 2022 

CR120 
Cleaning of Barrow Town Hall and Associated 
Buildings 2021-23 

7 5     12 19 July 2022 

 

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Priority 1 Recommendations 

 
 

Audit Recommendation Comment 

21-09 
Performance 
Management 

The Council should review its Performance Framework 
and associated procedures to cover the monitoring and 
management of performance across all levels of 
Council, and clearly define roles and responsibilities of 
staff and Members within a revised Framework.   

The Council has published a Service Performance 
Framework which identifies roles and 
responsibilities. 

21-09 
Performance 
Management 

The Council’s objectives, as laid out in the Council Plan, 
should be clearly defined to allow measurable targets to 
be set and stated objectives should be assigned to 
responsible managers. 

The Council Plan objectives are monitored 
through the Growing Forward reports and are 
outcome based rather than output based like the 
Service Performance Framework.  The Growing 
Forward reports set out progress towards the 
objectives set for each Council Priority.  The 
Growing Forward report identifies the responsible 
officers. 

21-09 
Performance 
Management 

The Council should link its published objectives to 
measurable targets that promote Value for Money and 
should define and publish, or report openly to Members, 
those targets alongside service targets at the beginning 
of the relevant term.   

Management are satisfied that the Council Plan 
Priorities, Growing Forward reports, and the 
Service Performance Framework, together with 
the detailed considerations of individual 
committee decisions, provides a sufficient 
relationship between the use of resources and 
outcomes/outputs achieved.  The Council does 
not carry out granular service planning. 

21-09 
Performance 
Management 

The Council should review its systems to ensure that 
they support the production of clear and reliable 
performance information. 

The systems used to produce service 
performance are robust and reliable – these are 
contained in the Service Performance Framework. 

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 2



 
 

Priority 1 Recommendations 

 
 

Audit Recommendation Comment 

21-09 
Performance 
Management 

The Council should compile regular reports of 
performance information to be presented to Members 
and made available to the public. 

Service performance is reported quarterly to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and is available 
to the public.  The Growing Forward reports are 
presented to the Executive Committee, also 
available to the public. 

21-17 
Procurement 

 

Management Board should explain the reasons for 
significant non-compliance with the Council’s financial 
regulations with regard to expenditure incurred with 
individual suppliers in excess of £100,000; and ensure 
that all future procurements exceeding £100,000 are 
conducted in accordance with Contract Standing Orders. 

The contract procedure rules were reset at 1 April 
2022 to reflect best practice and eliminate 
thematic weaknesses identified across audits.  
The new contract procedure rules focus on pre-
procurement requirements and thereby secure 
compliance by restricting actions and establishing 
a compliance gateway. 

21-17 
Procurement 

 

The Council should ensure that the provisions in place 
for the engagement of “specialist” suppliers is not 
abused and are used only for the engagement of true 
specialists rather than just preferred suppliers; and 
where specialised suppliers are identified, approval is 
obtained and clearly documented by authorised 
managers prior to purchase. 

The contract procedure rules were reset at 1 April 
2022 to reflect best practice and eliminate 
thematic weaknesses identified across audits.  
The new contract procedure rules focus on pre-
procurement requirements and thereby secure 
compliance by restricting actions and establishing 
a compliance gateway. 

21-17 
Procurement 

 

The Council should review and update its Purchasing 
Procedure regularly and ensure the latest version is 
available online. 

The procurement rules were reset at 1 April 2022 
alongside a procurement handbook; these were 
published in March 2022 as part of the material 
used in the training ahead of the reset. 

21-17 
Procurement 

 

The Assistant Director of Communities should explain 
why a contract is not in place for a supplier who has 
received £336,000 over the previous five years. 

This contract has been retendered but is not yet 
awarded. 

P
age 74

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 2



 
 

Priority 1 Recommendations 

 
 

Audit Recommendation Comment 

21-17 
Procurement 

 

The Council should ensure that 
procurements/purchases are consistently made in 
accordance with the competition requirements of its 
Purchasing Procedure  

The contract procedure rules were reset at 1 April 
2022 to reflect best practice and eliminate 
thematic weaknesses identified across audits.  
The new contract procedure rules focus on pre-
procurement requirements and thereby secure 
compliance by restricting actions and establishing 
a compliance gateway. 

21-17 
Procurement 

 

The Council should ensure that correctly authorised 
official purchase orders are issued for all relevant 
supplies in accordance with the Authority’s procedures. 

The contract procedure rules were reset at 1 April 
2022 to reflect best practice and eliminate 
thematic weaknesses identified across audits.  
The new contract procedure rules focus on pre-
procurement requirements and thereby secure 
compliance by restricting actions and establishing 
a compliance gateway. 

17-27 Council 
Leased Vehicles  

 

The Council should ensure that all Council leased 
vehicles are used only for Council business. 

The Council has a small number of vans assigned 
to specific services and uses Radius Telematics 
Kinesis (vehicle-tracking system). 

17-27 Council 
Leased Vehicles  

 

The Council should clearly define who has overall 
managerial responsibility for the use of Council leased 
vehicles. 

With the Waste Service insourced and the 
acquisition of a small EV fleet, the Head of 
Operational Services has been designated the 
Council’s fleet manager. 

17-27 Council 
Leased Vehicles  

 

The Council should introduce a log to record all usage of 
leased vehicles. 

Each Head of Service with a vehicle assigned is 
responsible for the use of vehicles in their care.  A 
log would be impractical for the waste fleet and 
other records exist that serve the same purpose. 

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 2



 
 

Priority 1 Recommendations 

 
 

Audit Recommendation Comment 

21-27 
Recruitment 

 

The Council should review the HR recruitment related 
procedures to ensure they are relevant, necessary and 
sufficiently clear.  In particular, the Recruitment Policy 
should be subject to detailed review to address potential 
inaccuracies, improvements and ambiguities, to aid 
compliance and associated assurance concerns. 

Work on further developing the recruitment 
procedures (such as automation) have stopped 
due to the inputs required on the Westmorland 
and Furness Council HR policies, and procedures.  
An accuracy review of the Recruitment Policy was 
completed, and internal consistencies were 
amended. 

21-27 
Recruitment 

 

The Council should ensure that the requirements and 
responsibilities for posts at equivalent grades are 
appropriate and consistent across those posts; including 
the consideration of set/standard qualifications 
commensurate with grades. 

The Council does not have a Grading Policy and 
relies upon the current structures to measure the 
scope of responsibilities of new roles – additional 
roles are created at the same level as comparable 
posts.  All recruitment is subject to review by HR 
to ensure consistency in the requirements and the 
grading. 

18-36 Barrow 
Playing Field 
Users 

The Council should consider whether a grant should still 
be provided considering the assurance level, difficulty in 
obtaining information and level of transparency. 

This contract ended in March 2019. 

18-36 Barrow 
Playing Field 
Users 

The Council should consider whether if a grant is still to 
be provided, it is reduced in value due to a reduction in 
the number of playing fields being maintained since the 
lease commenced. 

This contract ended in March 2019. 

18-36 Barrow 
Playing Field 
Users 

The Council should consider whether further 
investigation should take place to confirm the reported 
low levels of income declared for the use of the pitches. 

This contract ended in March 2019. 

P
age 76

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 2



 
 

Priority 1 Recommendations 

 
 

Audit Recommendation Comment 

18-36 Barrow 
Playing Field 
Users 

The Council should consider whether alternative service 
provision should be sought, i.e. tendering a contract for 
the management of the Council pitches, including the full 
and formal documentation of any such arrangements. 

This contract ended in March 2019. 

21-14 Accounts 
Receivable 

 

The Council should ensure that recovery processes are 
resumed according to finance department procedures, 
including a review of the Instalments spreadsheet to 
confirm all arrangements currently in place are still 
appropriate and are being adhered to. 

Recovery was interrupted by COVID-19 and was 
then impacted by staff shortages.  The Finance 
Department have recommenced normal recovery 
processes through existing officers working 
additional hours whilst the vacant Recovery 
Officer position is recruited. 

21-13 Payroll Management Team should explain why exceptions to 
the Relocation Policy were created and approval sought 
from members for extensions of the lodging allowance 
for two senior officers beyond the initial 26 week period. 

This matter was dealt with by the Executive 
Committee on the 9 February 2022 and was 
reported at the Audit and Governance Committee 
on the 17 March 2022. 

20-25 Covid Risk 
Assessment Post 
Assurance 
Review 

The Council should ensure that all control measures 
identified in the risk assessments produced are 
evidenced, including retrospectively, and spot checked 
by management where necessary. 

The COVID-19 risk assessment has been 
completely refreshed as part of the reassignment 
of Health and Safety through the restructure, 
supported by external H&S expertise.  All 
procedures, including spot checks, are carried out 
and evidenced, with exceptions reported to the 
Health and Safety Management Board. 

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 2



 
 

Priority 1 Recommendations 

 
 

Audit Recommendation Comment 

20-25 Covid Risk 
Assessment Post 
Assurance 
Review 

The Council should ensure that cleaning requirements 
are explicitly detailed within the cleaning contract.  
Further, any additional Covid cleaning requirements 
identified as part of the risk assessment should be 
formally communicated to the cleaning contractor, 
agreed as an amendment to the contract; and necessary 
assurance regarding this obtained. 

The specific office cleaning tendered is scheduled 
within the building cleaning contract; any future 
additional requirements, such as the touch points 
that COVID-19 required, will form a contract 
variation. 

IT75 IT 
Procedures 

 

The Council should accelerate the completion of the 
development of a coherent and managed suite of 
policies that form part of an overarching Information 
Security Management System. 

The Information Security Policy was 
comprehensively revised with external ICT 
expertise and presented to the Executive 
Committee on the 15 December 2021. 

IT75 IT 
Procedures 

 

The Council should ensure that all policies undergo the 
appropriate approval process to ensure it is fit for 
purpose and is regularly reviewed. 

The reset of the Information Security Policy 
included a review of the underlying IT policies to 
ensure that they are fit for purpose, in a corporate 
format, and are reviewed at the appropriate time. 

 

 

P
age 78

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 2



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee  

Thursday, 16 December 2022 

Annual Review of Internal Audit 
 

   

Report from:   Director of Resources 

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    None 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  Internal Audit must comply with proper practice as defined by the Accounts and 

Audit Regulations. 

 

1.2 The Section 151 Officer has reviewed the effectiveness of Internal Audit service 

and is satisfied that it is effective. 

 

1.3 The report provides an update on the Internal Audit service for 2023-2024. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee:- 

1) Endorse the annual review of the effectiveness of Internal Audit; and 

2) Note the report. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The Section 151 Officer is charged with ensuring an effective Internal Audit 

function is resourced and maintained, and has relied upon the following 

documents to support the view that the Internal Audit service is effective: 

 

3.2 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards: a self-assessment checklist 

completed by the Head of Internal Audit and reviewed by the Director of 

Resources.  It covers the Authority and its Internal Audit arrangements, and the 

Internal Audit service is substantially compliant with these standards: 

 

 Scope of Internal Audit 

 Independence 

 Ethics for internal auditors 

 Audit Committees 

 Relationships 

Page 79

Agenda Item 12



 Staffing, training, and development 

 Audit strategy and planning 

 Undertaking audit work 

 Due professional care 

 Reporting 

 Performance, quality, and effectiveness 

 

3.3 The CIPFA statement on the role of the Head of Internal Audit in local 

government: a self-assessment completed by the Head of Internal Audit and 

reviewed by the Director of Resources, there are no actions to implement. 

 

3.4 The Internal Audit Annual Report - this contains the performance of the 

service for each financial year and demonstrates the assurance level for the 

Council as a corporate entity in terms of governance and compliance.  The 

findings from the annual report are incorporated into the Combined Improvement 

Plan for monitoring and implementation. 

 

3.5 Local Government Reorganisation (LGR) 

 

3.5.1 An Internal Audit service will be established for each new unitary, with the 

Barrow Borough Council employees transferring into Westmorland and Furness 

Council. 

 

3.5.2 South Lakeland District Council and Eden District Council do not have Internal 

Audit employees, their services are contracted out. 

 

3.5.3 Cumbria County Council have an Internal Audit team and there is an ongoing 

staff allocation exercise that will identify the resource that will transfer to each 

new unitary. 

 

3.5.4 The work undertaken by each Internal Audit team has a significant core in 

common, but there are differences.  The County Council have functions that the 

districts do not have, and the districts have some functions that the County 

Council does not have. 

 

3.5.5 In particular, the Barrow team carry out the DWP Housing Benefit Assurance 

Process, or housing benefit subsidy sample testing.  Within the other districts this 

function is retained within the Revenues and Benefits service, however at Barrow 

the capacity and skill is included in the Internal Audit service. 

 

3.5.6 The DWP claim for 2022-2023 will be included in the Westmorland and Furness 

Annual Internal Audit Plan. 

 

3.5.7 The latest LGR Internal Audit meeting is due to be held on the 8 December 2022 

and any further updates will be reported at the committee meeting. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

Page 80

Agenda Item 12



4.1 Consultation is not relevant to the recommendation. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 The Audit and Governance Committee may choose not to endorse the review 

and note their rationale.  

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 

Committee is charged with that role. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report.  

 

7.2 Legal  

 7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 Officers are working with the LGR programme to ensure an effective Internal 

Audit service is established. 

 

7.4 Equality and Diversity  

7.4.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report is for 
information. 

 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

The Internal Audit service is 

not effective. 

The Council cannot 

demonstrate good 

governance. 

Internal Audit annual 

plan, audits, progress 

report and annual report. 

 

Contact Officers  

Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 
 

Page 81

Agenda Item 12

mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee 

Thursday, 16 December 2022 

Risk Management  

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources  

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 The Council’s Risk Management arrangements are currently under review with 

expert support engaged.  The corporate risk register and high-level operational 

risk register will be reviewed and reformatted to align with best practice.  The risk 

registers remain live during the review. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee note the 

report. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The Council’s risk management policy was due to be reviewed in September 

2022; the risk registers are reviewed quarterly. 

 

3.2 Zurich Municipal has been engaged by the Council to review the policy, to review 

the format of the risk register to align to current best practice, and to provide 

tailored training. 

 

3.3 The risk registers (as attached at Appendix 1) and there are no changes to 

highlight from the previous quarterly report.  

 

3.4 The Auditor’s Annual Report highlighted risk management as an area for 

improvement and outlined aspects of the risk register to expand – direction of 

travel, target risk score, future actions required, sources of risk and assurance, 

and dates of the last and next review. 

 

Page 83

Agenda Item 13



3.5 The outcome of the policy review will be reported to the Executive Committee for 

approval and to the Audit and Governance Committee to provide assurance to 

those charged with governance. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 The consultation is an internal process to ensure that all significant risks to the 

Council are recorded, measured, and treat in accordance with the policy. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternatives to present. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be  

aware of the risks facing service and strategic delivery to manage and  

mitigate those. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report. 

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 The risk registers will be incorporated in the risk management processes within 

Westmorland and Furness Council. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, there are no individual 
impacted by the recommendation. 

 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Risk occurs or materialises. Unforeseen events  

disrupt service delivery  

and achievement of the  

Council’s plans and  

priorities. 

Establish a risk  

management policy and  

monitor significant risks. 

 

Contact Officers  

Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Page 84

Agenda Item 13

mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk


Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Risk Registers December 2022 

 
 

Page 85

Agenda Item 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Corporate and Operational Risk Register               December 2022 

Page 1 
 

 Corporate Risk Register 
 

Reference  
Risk number/year/version 

Inherit Risk  
 

 
Mitigating 

Risk 
 

Ref. Risks 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

 
 

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

Lead Officer 

1/21/1 

Significant changes 
arising from Central 
Government 
Legislation. 

5 5 25 

 Regulatory changes. 

 Changes to service delivery. 

 Service performance implications. 

 Resource requirements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Awareness 

 Monitoring Officer will receive notification. 

 Horizon scanning by Management Team and Heads of Service. 

 Membership of professional and local government bodies aids 
horizon scanning. 

Actions 

 Management Team will determine actions to be taken. 

 Create detailed project plans to manage implementation of 
changes. 

 Adopt a management of change approach to mitigate against 
significant impact to the Council and its staff. 

 Heads of Service will be responsible for implementing changes 
through service planning. 

 Financial and workforce planning will be reviewed. 

 External support and specialists will be acquired. 

 The Council will respond to COVID requirements. 

2 5 10 
Head of Legal and 
Governance 

2/21/1 
Poor internal and 
external  
communications. 

4 4 16 

 Poorly informed direction of resources and lack of support for 
change. 

 Providing inaccurate information to the public may result in 
processing errors and reworking. 

 Public may have a negative perception of the Council.  
 
 

Awareness 

 Communication strategy on priorities. 

 Internal & external regular publications. 

 Regular staff communication from the Chief Executive. 

 Comments, Compliments and Complaints monitoring will be 
reported to the Senior Management Team and the Audit and 
Governance Committee. 

Actions 

 Regular staff and management meetings. 

 Key stakeholder networks for consultation. 

 Co-ordinated press releases. 

 Develop and maintain website and intranet. 

 Use external communication experts. 

 Recommence staff newsletter. 

 LGR staff newsletter and LGR specific briefings. 

2 2 4 Chief Executive 

3/21/1 

Failure to achieve 
efficiency saving, 
maximise income, or 
performance targets.  

 
5 

 
5 

 
25 

 Greater costs than budgeted for. 

 Reduced income generated. 

 Additional costs to mitigate COVID. 

 Costs of Local Government Reorganisation. 

 Core budget deficit to eliminate. 
 
 
 

Awareness 

 Budgetary control and financial management. 

 Regular reporting to Senior Management Team and Executive 
Committee. 

 Performance and achievements reported to Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. 

Actions 

 Heightened analysis of budgets and services. 

 Service transformation. 

 Business/service planning. 

 Pursue action to increase income streams. 

 Budget and performance monitoring. 

 Secure additional government support when available. 

 Challenges to hospitality industry may impact on income. 

4 4 16 Director of Resources 

P
age 87

A
genda Item

 13
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register               December 2022 

Page 2 
 

Reference  
Risk number/year/version 

Inherit Risk  
 

 
Mitigating 

Risk 
 

Ref. Risks 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

 
 

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

Lead Officer 

4/21/1 
Poor management of 
projects and 
contracts. 

4 5 20 

 Leads to overruns on time or cost and failure to achieve project 
aims.  

 Non-compliance with contract standing orders and financial 
regulations. 

 Potential of fraud and corruption. 

 Irretrievable breakdown in contractor arrangements results in the 
contractor being unable to deliver the outsourced service.  
 

 
 

Awareness  

 Managing contract performance. 

 Contract checklist.  

 Service plans. 

 Monitoring of contractor performance. 

 Regular contractor meetings. 
Actions 

 Project management methodology. 

 External project management support. 

 External contract management support. 

 Contract standing orders and financial regulations. 

 Budgetary control. 

 The Council owns property assets used by contractors. 

3 2 6 
Director of People and 
Place  

5/21/1 

Ineffective workforce 
planning or imposed 
reductions in 
resources.  

4 5 20 

 Poor standards of service or disruption to service.   

 Service transformation and commissioning can help build 
resilience. 

 Loss of qualified and knowledgeable staff exposing the Council 
to risk of service failure and legal challenge. 

 
 
 
 
 

Awareness 

 Established suite of HR policies and procedures. 

 Service planning process. 
Actions  

 Organisational review. 

 Organisational development. 

 Training and development. 

 Working environment. 

 Staff surveys/consultation. 

 Agile and flexible working. 

 Business continuity plans. 

 Management training. 

 Appraisals. 

 Service planning. 

 Values and behaviours framework. 

2 3 6 Director of Resources 

6/21/1 
Failure to secure and 
manage data.  

5 5 25 

 Loss of/ corruption of/ inaccuracy of data, results in disruption to 
services and breaches of security.   

 Major IT physical hardware failure or electronic attack, such as 
viruses, hacking or spyware, causes disruption to services and 
breaches of security.   

 Financial penalties and reputational risk. 
 
 
 
 

Awareness 

 Data breach reporting. 

 IT security monitoring. 

 Awareness of cyber security risks. 
Actions 

 Data protection policy and procedure. 

 Freedom of Information publication scheme. 

 Data retention policy and procedure for archive and disposal. 

 Information breach response plan. 

 Business continuity plan. 

 Disaster recovery plan. 

 IT system security measures and policies. 

 Public Services Network compliance. 

 IT and data online training modules. 

 GDPR training and policy. 

 Review data sharing agreements. 

 Data owner central register. 

 Anti-virus software. 

 Multi-factor authentication. 

 Clear desk strategy. 

 Agile working. 

 Virtual meetings where applicable. 

2 3 6 
Director of Resources 
 

P
age 88

A
genda Item

 13
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register               December 2022 

Page 3 
 

Reference  
Risk number/year/version 

Inherit Risk  
 

 
Mitigating 

Risk 
 

Ref. Risks 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

 
 

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

Lead Officer 

7/21/1 Economic change. 5 5 25 

 Imposed savings requirements, the financial settlement and 
Fairer Funding Review; Housing Revenue Account restraints; 
reliance on Council Tax and Business Rate income. 

 Changes in service demands and levels of income and 
unsustainable costs for the Council. 

 Rising energy prices – gas, electricity, and fuel. 
 
 
 

Awareness 

 Council wide efficiency measures. 

 Budget monitoring. 

 Debt management policy. 

 Market pressures. 
Actions  

 Financial regulations and contract standing orders. 

 Organisational review to ensure we have the right posts and the 
right skills. 

 Medium Term Financial Plan and savings plan. 

 Political decisions aligned to planned budget strategies and 
available resources. 

 Review of fees and charges. 

 Maintaining and contributing to financial reserves. 

 Strong financial management system. 

 Capital finance risk management. 

 Internal Audit review of fundamental systems. 

 Modelling and monitoring of Business Rates (including appeals) 
and Council Tax. 

 Spending Review technical assessment. 

4 4 16 Director of Resources 

8/21/1 

Natural disaster 
pandemic; malicious 
or accidental 
incident. 

5 4 20 

 Impacts support required by citizens or disrupts existing Council 
services. 

 Impact on Council’s finances. 

 Additional duties imposed by Government impact Council 
resources, business as usual and plans. 

 There is a risk that additional costs and loss of income 
associated with COVID or another event that depletes the 
Council’s reserves to such an extent that the Council is no 
longer financially sustainable. 

 
 
 

Awareness 

 Information provided by external organisations. 

 Communications strategy. 
Actions 

 Emergency plan. 

 Emergency planning exercises. 

 Review business continuity plan. 

 Review of disaster recovery arrangements. 

 Arrangements with partner organisations. 

 Review service arrangements with major contractors. 

 Work with other Cumbria local authorities to lobby Central 
Government to address any costs (COVID for example). 

 Continue to review reserves and Medium Term Finances. 

4 4 16 Chief Executive 

9/21/1 
Changes in political 
priorities. 

5 4 20 

 Resulting in immediate changes that require additional resource 
to achieve and fail to reflect priorities determined by 
consultation. 

 
 

Actions 

 Financial and workforce planning. 

 Monitoring by Management Team and reporting to the Executive 
Committee. 

 Clear corporate planning and regular performance monitoring. 

 Effective service planning. 

 Respond to national consultation on key policy changes. 

 Membership of the Local Government Association. 

 Member training sessions to reflect changes in priorities. 

5 3 15 Chief Executive 

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 13
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register               December 2022 

Page 4 
 

Reference  
Risk number/year/version 

Inherit Risk  
 

 
Mitigating 

Risk 
 

Ref. Risks 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

 
 

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

Lead Officer 

10/21/1 
Major Health and 
Safety incident at the 
Council.  

4 4 16 

 Additional costs for inquiry, disruption to service and possible 
prosecution. 

 Service interruption. 

 Reputational damage. 

Awareness 

 Corporate wide H&S training. 
Actions 

 H&S Management Board. 

 H&S Management Group. 

 H&S procedures, including specific departmental needs. 

 Specialist H&S advisor and expertise. 

 Insurance. 

 Workplace and DSE assessments. 

4 3 12 Chief Executive 

12/20/1 
Failure to deliver the 
objectives of the 
Council plan 

5 3 15 

 Opportunities to deliver improvements for the Borough may be 
missed. 

 Detrimental impact for residents. 

 Unable to attract new businesses and residents to the Borough. 
 

 There is an annual review of progress against the Council Plan 
which is presented to the Executive Committee.  

 The plan contains actions which will deliver the plan’s objectives. 

 Service plans for each department are currently being prepared.  

5 2 10 Chief Executive 

13/21/1 

Climate Change 
adversely impacts 
the Borough and its 
surroundings. 

5 5 25 

 The natural flora, fauna, habitats and features of the area 
deteriorate or are lost. 

 Greenhouse gas emissions are not reduced leaving the Earth's 
temperature to rise faster than is natural. 

 Extreme weather events such as floods and wildfires increase in 
potential. 

 Clean energy opportunities are not promoted. 

 Waste is not reduced, and reuse is not maximised. 

 Climate emergency declared on 16 July 2019 and made a 
commitment to reduce carbon emissions. 

 The Climate Change Working Group created a 5 year Climate 
Change Policy which was agreed at full council on 16 June 
2020. 

 That policy sets out the ambition for the Borough to be net zero 
carbon no later than 2037. 

 The Low Carbon Barrow project will deliver carbon savings and 
establish a framework for continuous and future developments. 

3 3 9 
Public Protection 
Manager 

14/21/1 

Local Government 
Reorganisation 
adversely impacts 
public services 
for the Borough. 

4 4 16 

 There is no locality focus and services are not tailored to the 
customer’s needs. 

 Service delivery is impacted by the process of reorganisation. 
Current services are reduced or removed. 

 Investment and development in the Borough is reduced or at 
risk. 

 The gaps identified in public health equality are not 

 addressed. 

 The reorganisation will be managed as a project through 
arrangements agreed between the 7 authorities. 

 A structure to provide governance and an action/implementation 
plan is established and workstreams with lead officers have 
been set up. 

 The workstreams will use existing Cumbria-wide working groups 
and the outputs required will flow from the action/implementation 
plan. 

 An implementation reserve has been established together with a 
financial protocol. 

 The actions will take 7 authorities on the journey to 2 authorities 
whilst ensuring service continuity is maintained in the best 
possible way before and after unitisation. 

 Communication and engagement are identified as a key 
workstream – for customers, stakeholders and especially for 
employees. 

 Service reforms and transitions/savings will be achieved within 
the new authorities – there is too high a risk in significant 
changes pre-unitisation. 

 The Council is undertaking a community governance review for 
Barrow Town. 

2 3 6 Chief Executive 

 

P
age 90

A
genda Item

 13
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register               December 2022 

Page 5 
 

Operational Risk Register 

 
Reference  

Risk number/year/version 
Inherit Risk  

 
 

Mitigating 
Risk 

 

Ref Risks 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

 
 

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

Lead Officer 

1/21/1 

Service provision and 
performance affected 
by organisational 
change, industrial 
action and/or staff 
sickness. 

4 5 20 

 Complaints, poor performance and possible further costs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Awareness 

 Established suite of HR policies and procedures. 

 Organisational culture. 

 Management training. 
Actions  

 Working environment. 

 Staff surveys/consultation. 

 Agile and flexible working. 

 Business continuity plans. 

 Appraisals and professional training. 

 Performance monitoring and management. 

 Clear absence management scheme. 

 Workforce strategy. 

3 4 12 Director of Resources 

2/21/1 

Failure of contractor or 
partners to deliver 
services or meet 
agreed performance 
targets. 

4 5 20 

 Additional costs or failed objectives. 
 
 
 
 

Awareness 

 Project management. 
Actions  

 Procurement processes – including financial aspects/contract 
standing orders/equality standards. 

 Contract process – creation of robust contracts. 

 Accountability and risk ownership documented. 

 Service level agreements. 

 Contract monitoring and remedial action. 

 Trained/skilled staff. 

 Established governance arrangements. 

4 3 12 
Director of People and 
Place 

3/21/1 

Potential for fraud, 
corruption, malpractice 
or error, by internal or 
external threats.  In 
additional to 
immediate financial 
loss.  

5 3 12 

 Could harm reputation and lead to additional inquiry costs and 
penalties. 

Awareness 

 Appropriate culture and risk awareness. 
Actions 

 Anti-fraud and corruption strategy. 

 Whistleblowing policy. 

 National Anti-Fraud Network. 

 National Fraud Initiative. 

 Financial regulations and contract standing orders. 

 Codes of conduct. 

 Appropriately trained staff. 

 Segregation of duties. 

 Supported financial management system. 

 Budget monitoring regime. 

 Internal Audit review of systems and controls. 

 Insurance. 

 Annual Governance Statement. 

3 1 3 Director of Resources 

P
age 91

A
genda Item

 13
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register               December 2022 

Page 6 
 

Reference  
Risk number/year/version 

Inherit Risk  
 

 
Mitigating 

Risk 
 

Ref Risks 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

 
 

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

Lead Officer 

4/21/1 

Significant 
infrastructure projects 
aren’t properly 
supported. 

5 4 20 

 Projects aren’t delivered in a timely manner. 

 Additional project cost. 

 Loss of reputation. 
 

Awareness 

 Programme Board. 

 Service delivery plan will establish key milestones. 
Actions 

 Regular reviews by the relevant project and programme boards. 

 Review resource and skill requirements. 

 Realign resources with the Council’s priorities. 

 Address skill shortages. 

 Develop project management skills where required. 

5 2 10 
Director of People and 
Place 

5/21/1 
Failure to deliver 
repairs services due to 
COVID restrictions. 

5 3 15 

 Unable to carry out repairs and maintenance services to 
housing assets within the borough. 

 Potential increase in disrepair claims from Solicitors. 

 Tenants at risk of harm from defective components and 
maintenance of gas/electric services. 

 Responsive Repairs Contractor may not be able to maintain 
services due to economic downturn. 

 Materials and components are not available from builders 
merchants. 

 
 

 Arrangements in place to ensure adequate trade resources 
remain available to provide 24 hour emergency cover. 

 Covid 19 Risk Assessments and safe systems of work signed 
off and in place, including PPE and tenant questionnaire. 

 Routine (30 day repairs) are presently on hold to reduce build 
up/backlog of overdue orders. 

 Investigating zonal working by housing area to improve 
efficiency, reduce cold calling and increase communications 
with tenants. 

 Additional software purchased from Eviid to reduce number of 
home visits by staff and provide improved live video chat with 
tenants to identify repair priority and diagnosis. 

5 2 10 
Deputy Director of 
People and Place 

 

P
age 92

A
genda Item

 13
A

ppendix 1



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee 

Thursday, 16 December 2022 

External Audit Plan 

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources 

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 This report presents the External Audit Plan for the year ended 31 March 2022. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee note the 

External Audit Plan for the year ended 31 March 2022. 

 

3.1 The External Audit Plan for the year ended 31 March 2022 is detailed at 

Appendix 1 and Grant Thornton will present the plan to Members. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 The report is not subject to formal consultation, but the Director of Resources 

has been consulted and provided a management update that is reflected in the 

Plan. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternative options to consider. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 

Committee is charged with that role. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

Page 93

Agenda Item 14



7.1.1 There are no financial, resources or procurement implications arising from this 

report.  

 

7.2 Legal  

 7.2.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 Any incomplete audits will transfer to Westmorland and Furness Council to 

complete as part of legacy matters. 

 

7.4 Equality and Diversity  

7.4.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report concerns the 
external audit process. 

 

Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

The appointed auditor is 

unable to obtain sufficient 

assurance in relation to the 

Council’s finances and value 

for money arrangements. 

The appointed auditors’ 

opinion does not 

adequately reflect the 

Council’s arrangements. 

 

The audit cannot be 

concluded. 

The appointed auditors’ 

annual plan is agreed 

and the audit fee reflects 

the resources required. 

Internal resources are 

insufficient. 

The audit plan is 

delayed. 

Planning and 

coordination between 

key officers. 

 

Contact Officers  

Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  External Audit Annual Plan 

 

Page 94

Agenda Item 14

mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk


P
age 95

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 96

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1

mailto:Gareth.Kelly@uk.gt.com


Commercial in confidence

P
age 97

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/97b5a417-d9bf-4649-b3c3-3ae49a350fe7/FRC-AQR-Major-Local-Audits_October-2021.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 98

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 99

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 100

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 101

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 102

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 103

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 104

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 105

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 106

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 107

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/0fa69c03-49ec-49ae-a8c9-cc7a2b65382a/ISA-(UK)-540_Revised-December-2018_final.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

–

–

–

–

•

P
age 108

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 109

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

16

IT system Audit area Planned level IT audit assessment

• ITGC assessment (design effectiveness)

P
age 110

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 111

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 112

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

19

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 113

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

.

•

•

•

Ethical Standard (revised 

2019) P
age 114

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/601c8b09-2c0a-4a6c-8080-30f63e50b4a2/Revised-Ethical-Standard-2019-With-Covers.pdf


Commercial in confidence

.

P
age 115

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 116

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

23

Function Benefits for you

Data extraction Providing us with your financial 

information is made easier

File sharing An easy-to-use, ISO 27001 certified, 

purpose-built file sharing tool

Project 

management

Effective management and oversight of 

requests and responsibilities

Data analytics Enhanced assurance from access to 

complete data populations

P
age 117

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

24

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 118

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

✓

✓

P
age 119

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1



Commercial in confidence

✓

P
age 120

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1



P
age 121

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Audit and Governance Committee 

Thursday, 16 December 2022 

Assurance Arrangements  

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources  

Report Author:  Director of Resources  

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  The Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee has provided the appointed 

auditor with details of how the Audit and Governance Committee gains 

assurance from management. 

 

1.2 This report provides the response for Members to endorse. 

 

1.3 The report also includes the management response informing the audit risk 

assessment and in relation to accounting estimates. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee:-  

 

1) Endorse the Chair’s assessment of assurance from management; and 

2) Note the management response informing the audit risk assessment 

and in relation to accounting estimates. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The appointed auditor requested that the Chair of the Audit and Governance 

Committee explain how assurance from management is obtained; the response 

from the Chair is attached as Appendix 1. 

 

3.2  Members are asked to consider and endorse the Chair’s response. 

 

3.2 The appointed auditor requested that management explain the management 

processes in place to prevent and detect fraud and to ensure compliance with 

law and regulation.  Management have provided a response informing the audit 

Page 123

Agenda Item 15



risk assessment and Members are asked to note the response provided as 

shown at Appendix 2. 

 

3.3 Management have also provided details of the accounting estimates used in 

preparing the financial statements.  The accounting policies are presented to this 

Committee prior to preparing the financial statements, and the details at 

Appendix 3 expand on the risk recognised in certain estimates: assets, pension, 

significant provisions and accruals, credit loss and impairment, and the fair value 

of investments and borrowings. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 The only consultation is with the Audit and Governance Committee. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 Members may propose alternative responses for the Chair to consider. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 

Committee is charged with that role. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report.  

 

7.2 Legal  

 7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 There are no impacts on Local Government Reorganisation. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report relates to 
internal governance. 

 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

The Audit and Governance 

Committee receive inadequate 

assurance from management. 

Governance and internal 

controls at risk. 

Audit and Governance 

Committee work plan. 

 

Internal Audit Annual 

Plan. 

 

Page 124

Agenda Item 15



Senior Officers 

attendance at the Audit 

and Governance 

Committee. 

 

Contact Officers  

Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee 

Assurance Response 

2 Management 

Informing the Audit Risk Assessment 

3 Management 

Accounting Estimates 

 

Page 125

Agenda Item 15

mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Chief Executive 
Sam Plum 

Director of Resources 
Susan Roberts 

Director of People and Place 
Steph Cordon 

Contact Name: Date: 

Hebe Dyson  
Manager  
Grant Thornton UK LLP  

Sent by email 

Director of Resources 

TOWN HALL · DUKE STREET 
BARROW-IN-FURNESS · CUMBRIA  LA14 2LD 

Tel: (01229) 876543 

Email: customerservices@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 SMR/AB Susan Roberts 20/10/2022 
 

Dear Hebe 

Barrow Borough Council - Financial Statements for the year end 31 March 2022 

I have set out my responses regarding fraud and litigation at Appendix 1. 

As Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee, I confirm that I agree with management’s 
assessment of estimates and the completed audit risk assessment.  I understand that Sue 
has provided those to you separately. 

I confirm that my own responses regarding fraud and litigation, management’s assessment 
of estimates and the audit risk assessment shall all be presented at the next Audit and 
Governance Committee meeting. 

Yours sincerely 

Councillor Mrs A Burns 
Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee 

Appendix 1 – Questions to the Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee 

 Our Ref: 

 Your Ref: 

Page 127

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 1



Commercial in confidence 

Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 

Responses from Audit and Governance Committee Chair: 

Fraud risk assessment 

Auditor Question Response 
Has the Council assessed the risk of material 
misstatement in the financial statements due to 
fraud? 

Yes.  All manual journals are checked and posted 
by a separate officer.  The Accountancy Services 
Manager is responsible for preparing the financial 
statements based on the work performed by the 
Accountants.  The financial statements are 
reviewed by the Section 151 Officer before being 
authorised for issue.  Internal Audit check the 
financial systems and internal controls throughout 
the year.  The financial systems have not 
changed during 2021/22.  The basis of 
estimations and significant judgements is 
disclosed in the Statement of Accounts along with 
the accounting policies. 

What are the results of this process? The process has not identified any fraudulent 
misstatements.  Any fraudulent misstatements 
identified by the Internal Audit work would be 
reported to the Section 151 Officer.  An 
investigation and appropriate action would follow.  
If management override by the Section 151 
Officer were suspected, the matter would be 
referred to the Chief Executive. 

What processes do the Council have in place to 
identify and respond to risks of fraud? 

The Council has a comprehensive Anti-Fraud, 
Theft, Bribery and Corruption Strategy and 
Response Plan, and a Whistleblowing Policy.  
The Internal Audit annual plan is risk-based and is 
intended to cover all significant risk areas.  The 
Fraud Hotline provides an independent route for 
any concerns to be raised confidentially.  There is 
a Code of Conduct for Members of the Council 
and a Code of Conduct for Officers.  The Council 
has a Money Laundering Policy and controls its 
treasury activities through its Treasury 
Management Practices.  The Finance Department 
control changes to supplier details and 
authenticates any subsequent updates.  
Segregation of duties and management 
authorisations operate in the areas of the Council 
involving financial controls, such as ordering 
goods or services, payment of invoices or 
expenses, cash, and banking reconciliations. 

Have any specific fraud risks, or areas with a high 
risk of fraud, been identified and what has been 
done to mitigate these risks? 

Within the core business of the Council no new 
fraud risks have become apparent.  All financial 
transactions carry a degree of risk and that is 
assessed as part of the internal control framework 
when systems and processes are designed.  Any 
changes or adaptions to the existing systems and 
processes are thoroughly assessed before being 

Appendix 1Page 128

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 1



 

 2 

Commercial in confidence 

Auditor Question Response 
implemented.  The areas within the Council that 
operate with cash are always deemed as high risk 
for potential fraud.  There are specific controls 
designed to mitigate and detect any fraudulent 
activity; services that directly accept cash only 
receive low value cash transactions.  Treasury 
management involves high value transactions and 
again specific controls are in place internally as 
well as externally – the brokers and 
counterparties all have fraud risk mitigation and 
detection built into their dealings process. 
 
During COVID-19 local authorities distributed a 
variety of business support grants and self-
isolation payments.  Processes for delivering 
these were established including the verification 
requirements to meet the assurance set by 
government and the Council’s own controls. 

Are internal controls, including segregation of 
duties, in place and operating effectively? 

Yes, the Council’s internal controls are reviewed 
and tested by Internal Audit and through 
management review.  Managers are sometimes 
part of an internal control process, but where this 
is not the case it is expected that checks are 
made to ensure the continued observance of the 
controls is occurring.  Duties are segregated 
where necessary and dual authorisation applies 
to all financial transactions.  The main source of 
assurance will always be Internal Audit. 

If not, where are the risk areas and what mitigating 
actions have been taken? 

The main risk areas where greater emphasis is 
placed, concerns housing benefit, council tax, 
business rates, housing, procurement and 
recruitment.  The processes and systems in place 
are designed to prevent and detect fraud. 

Are there any areas where there is a potential for 
override of controls or inappropriate influence over 
the financial reporting process (for example 
because of undue pressure to achieve financial 
targets)?  

There are no areas where financial targets apply 
and there is no benefit in inappropriately 
influencing the financial reporting process.  The 
quarterly reporting follows a similar process to the 
financial statements; the Finance Department 
create all the transactions for services, the 
Accountancy Services Manager compiles the 
budgetary movements and reserves, the Section 
151 Officer prepares the overall monitoring report.  
Access to posting entries into the General Ledger 
is restricted.  Access to update the sub-ledgers is 
restricted to the Finance Department where 
internal controls exist for each process and 
segregation of duties is observed. 

Are there any areas where there is a potential for 
misreporting? 

There are no areas where there is a potential for 
misreporting as the financial information is 
sourced from the General Ledger which is within 
a controlled environment. 

Page 129

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 1



 

 3 

Commercial in confidence 

Auditor Question Response 
How do the Audit and Governance Committee 
exercise oversight over management's processes 
for identifying and responding to risks of fraud? 
 
 
What arrangements are in place to report fraud 
issues and risks to the Audit and Governance 
Committee? 

The Audit and Governance Committee receives 
reports from Internal Audit, the Section 151 
Officer and the appointed external auditors.  Any 
issues relating to fraud would be reported to the 
Audit and Governance Committee.  The Anti-
Fraud Policies are approved and adopted by Full 
Council through the Executive Committee 
process.  The Audit and Governance Committee 
are made aware of the process and any updates 
or revisions as those charged with governance. 
The Anti-Fraud Policies identify Internal Audit as 
the preferred route to report fraud issues and 
risks.  However, officers can report concerns to 
their managers or the Senior Management Team 
if they prefer.  For Members, any potential issues 
are reported to the Monitoring Officer in the first 
instance. 

How do the Council communicate and encourage 
ethical behaviour of its staff and contractors? 

There is a comprehensive checklist completed as 
part of the induction process for new staff, which 
includes the way the Council operates and the 
policies and conditions of service that the officers 
are expected to work to.  Policies, such as the 
Anti-Fraud Policies are available online to all staff 
with computer access and managers are asked to 
provide these in hard copy to other employees.  
As and when policies change, an email is sent to 
all staff to make them aware that changes have 
occurred (usually with a summary of the changes 
included) and that a revised or updated policy has 
been published.  The Council’s Values and 
Behaviours framework was established in 
2018/19 and supports a culture that promotes 
honest and integrity. 

How do you encourage staff to report their 
concerns about fraud?  
Have any significant issues been reported? 

The Whistleblowing Policy is promoted, and a 
number of calls have been received – this activity 
is reported in the Internal Audit Progress Report.  
No fraud concerns were raised during 2021/22 
and non-fraud concerns were also reported to the 
Fraud Hotline. 

Are you aware of any related party relationships or 
transactions that could give rise to risks of fraud? 

There are no related party relationships or 
transactions that could give rise to risks of fraud 
that I am aware of. 

Are you aware of any instances of actual, 
suspected or alleged, fraud within the Council since 
1 April 2021? 

There are no instances of actual, suspected, or 
alleged fraud either within the Council as a whole 
or within specific departments since 1 April 2021 
that I am aware of. 

 

 

 

 

Page 130

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 1



 

 4 

Commercial in confidence 

 

Law and regulation 

Auditor Question Response 
What arrangements do the Council have in place to 
prevent and detect non-compliance with laws and 
regulations? 

The Council relies on the Monitoring Officer to 
prevent and detect non-compliance with laws 
and regulations, and that Heads of Service will 
flag issues that require the Monitoring Officer’s 
opinion or attention.  The Monitoring Officer 
ensures compliance with the Council’s 
Constitution.  The Council also employs a 
number of professional, qualified officers in 
particular fields of expertise and also obtains 
external legal advice when required.  Executive 
Committee reports include consideration of the 
legal aspects of any decision for Members.  
The Senior Management Team review the 
legal aspects of Executive Committee 
proposals at pre-agenda meetings and 
challenges report authors where necessary; 
the Monitoring Officer attends the pre-agenda 
meetings.  On occasion management make 
use of a number of professional, qualified 
officers in particular fields of expertise 
including external legal advice when required.  
The Monitoring Officer is part of a Cumbria-
wide network and attends training where 
appropriate. 

How do management gain assurance that all 
relevant laws and regulations have been complied 
with? 

How is the Audit and Governance Committee 
provided with assurance that all relevant laws and 
regulations have been complied with? 

The Monitoring Officer has overall 
responsibility for assuring management that all 
relevant laws and regulations have been 
complied with.  The legal aspects of any 
decision for Members are disclosed in the 
reports presented at the Executive Committee. 

Have there been any instances of non-compliance 
or suspected non-compliance with law and 
regulation since 1 April 2021? 

There have been no instances of non-
compliance or suspected non-compliance with 
law and regulation since 1 April 2021. 

What arrangements do the Council have in place to 
identify, evaluate and account for litigation or 
claims? 

Claims against the Council are raised with the 
Senior Management Team and would be dealt 
with either by the Council’s insurers, retained 
solicitors or an alternate if specific expertise 
were required.  There are no actual or potential 
litigation or claims that would affect the 
financial statements. 

Is there any actual or potential litigation or claims 
that would affect the financial statements? 

Have there been any reports from other regulatory 
bodies, such as HM Revenues and Customs, which 
indicate non-compliance? 

There have been no reports from other 
regulatory bodies that indicate non-
compliance. 

 

 
 

Page 131

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



Informing the audit risk assessment for 
Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 
2021/22

Gareth Kelly
Director
T +44 (0)141 223 0891
E Gareth.Kelly@uk.gt.com

P
age 133

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which 

we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit process.  It is not a comprehensive 

record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot 

be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect your business or any 

weaknesses in your internal controls.  This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and 

should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any 

responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the 

basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any 

other purpose.

2

P
age 134

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Table of Contents

Section Page

Purpose 4

General Enquiries of Management 6

Fraud 9

Fraud Risk Assessment 10

Laws and Regulations 15

Impact of Laws and Regulations 16

Related Parties 18

Going Concern 20

Accounting Estimates                                                                                            22

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management 23

Appendix A – Accounting Estimates 26 

3

P
age 135

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to contribute towards the effective two-way communication between Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council's external 

auditors and Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council's Audit and Governance Committee, as 'those charged with governance'. The report covers some 

important areas of the auditor risk assessment where we are required to make inquiries of the Audit and Governance Committee under auditing 

standards.   

Background

Under International Standards on Auditing (UK), (ISA(UK)) auditors have specific responsibilities to communicate with the Audit and Governance 

Committee. ISA(UK) emphasise the importance of two-way communication between the auditor and the Audit and Governance Committee and also 

specify matters that should be communicated.

This two-way communication assists both the auditor and the Audit and Governance Committee in understanding matters relating to the audit and 

developing a constructive working relationship. It also enables the auditor to obtain information relevant to the audit from the Audit and Governance 

Committee and supports the Audit and Governance Committee in fulfilling its responsibilities in relation to the financial reporting process. 

Communication

As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to obtain an understanding of management processes and the Council’s oversight of the 

following areas:

• General Enquiries of Management

• Fraud,

• Laws and Regulations,

• Related Parties, 

• Going Concern, and

• Accounting Estimates.

4

P
age 136

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Purpose

This report includes a series of questions on each of these areas and the response we have received from Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council's

management. The Audit and Governance Committee should consider whether these responses are consistent with its understanding and whether 

there are any further comments it wishes to make. 

5

P
age 137

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

1. What do you regard as the key events or issues that 

will have a significant impact on the financial statements 

for 2021/22?  

The matters that have a significant impact on the financial statements for 2021/22 are the valuation of 

assets; the COVID-19 funds distributed on behalf of government as a principal and the proper exclusion of 

those distribution as an agent; the precepting impacts of COVID-19 reliefs; and changes in the net pension 

liability.  The Council changed the service delivery model of the Park Leisure Centre during 2021/22 but 

this does not have a significant impact on the financial statements.

2. Have you considered the appropriateness of the 

accounting policies adopted by Barrow-in-Furness 

Borough Council?

Have there been any events or transactions that may 

cause you to change or adopt new accounting policies? 

If so, what are they?

The accounting policies applied to 2021/22 were presented to the Audit and Governance Committee on the 

17 March 2022 following managements assessment.  The Council wholly owns Barrow Forward which was 

a newly established company to deliver the Park Leisure Centre services, however group accounts have not 

been prepared for 2021/22.  Barrow Forward began trading on 1 February 2022 and the finances for the 

period to 31 March 2022 are below materiality levels.  The Council’s accounting policies apply to the 

company; 14 month accounts will be prepared as permitted by the Companies Act.

3. Is there any use of financial instruments, including 

derivatives? If so, please explain
The Council’s financial instruments consist of temporary fixed rate, fixed term investments, and mixed term 

fixed rate, fixed term PWLB loans.  There are also soft loans under the Cluster of Empty Homes scheme.  

The Council has no derivates, LOBOs, or traded shares.

4. Are you aware of any significant transaction outside 

the normal course of business? If so, what are they?
There are no significant transactions outside the normal course of business apart from the significant 

amounts distributed on behalf of government for COVID-19.

6

P
age 138

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

5. Are you aware of any changes in circumstances that 

would lead to impairment of non-current assets? If so, 

what are they?

The Council is not aware of any changes in circumstances that would lead to the impairment of non-

current assets; the impact of COVID-19 recognised in previous year-end valuations has passed.

6. Are you aware of any guarantee contracts? If so, 

please provide further details
The Council has no guarantee contracts.  For complete disclosure, the LGPS membership of those Barrow 

Forward employees that originally transferred from Barrow Borough Council (to Life Leisure, then to Barrow 

Forward) is the same Appropriate Fund as Barrow Borough Council.  The Council will assume the liabilities 

of Barrow Forward if it is unable to meet its scheme liabilities.

7. Are you aware of the existence of loss contingencies 

and/or un-asserted claims that may affect the financial 

statements? If so, please provide further details

Management are not aware of the existence of loss contingencies or unasserted claims that may affect the 

financial statements.

8. Other than in house solicitors, can you provide details 

of those solicitors utilised by Barrow-in-Furness 

Borough Council during the year. Please indicate where 

they are working on open litigation or contingencies 

from prior years?

I understand that the Monitoring Officer has provided a comprehensive schedule as the Head of Legal and 

Governance.  The Council has a framework with Brown Barron for the bulk of legal advice, with others 

engaged where specialities are required such as subsidy allowance with DWF LLP (formerly state aid) and 

for the Community Governance Review, St John’s Chambers.

7

P
age 139

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

9. Have any of the Barrow-in-Furness Borough 

Council's service providers reported any items of fraud, 

non-compliance with laws and regulations or 

uncorrected misstatements which would affect the 

financial statements? If so, please provide further 

details

None of the Council’s service providers have reported any items of fraud, non-compliance with laws or 

regulations, or uncorrected misstatements which would affect the financial statements.

10. Can you provide details of other advisors consulted 

during the year and the issue on which they were 

consulted?

Advisors during 2021/22; APSE – setting up Barrow Forward and waste service delivery options; Sam 

Bagshaw – Community Governance Review; David Ganz Associates – equality impact assessments; Bob 

Pedley Safety Services – health and safety; Trafford Council – STAR procurement review; LAVAT – tax and 

VAT; Link – treasury services.

11. Have you considered and identified assets for which 

expected credit loss provisions ay be required under 

IFRS 9, such as debtors (including loans) and 

investments? If so, please provide further details

The Council has not identified any assets for which expected credit loss is required; trade debtors are 

assessed at year-end and potential credit loss is provided for (formerly referred to as a bad debt provision).

8

P
age 140

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud

Matters in relation to fraud

ISA (UK) 240 covers auditors responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit of financial statements.

The primary responsibility to prevent and detect fraud rests with both the Audit and Governance Committee and management. 

Management, with the oversight of the Audit and Governance Committee, needs to ensure a strong emphasis on fraud prevention and 

deterrence and encourage a culture of honest and ethical behaviour. As part of its oversight, the Audit and Governance Committee should 

consider the potential for override of controls and inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process.

As Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council's external auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial 

statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud or error. We are required to maintain professional scepticism throughout the 

audit, considering the potential for management override of controls.

As part of our audit risk assessment procedures we are required to consider risks of fraud. This includes considering the arrangements 

management has put in place with regard to fraud risks including: 

• assessment that the financial statements could be materially misstated due to fraud,

• process for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, including any identified specific risks, 

• communication with the Audit and Governance Committee regarding its processes for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, and

• communication to employees regarding business practices and ethical behaviour. 

We need to understand how the Audit and Governance Committee oversees the above processes. We are also required to make inquiries 

of both management and the Audit Committee as to their knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud. These areas have been set 

out in the fraud risk assessment questions below together with responses from Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council's management. 

9

P
age 141

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

1. Has Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council assessed 

the risk of material misstatement in the financial 

statements due to fraud?

How has the process of identifying and responding to 

the risk of fraud been undertaken and what are the 

results of this process? 

How do the Council’s risk management processes link to 

financial reporting?

Yes.  The Council’s Accountants review the financial information of assigned service areas throughout 

the year.  Posting of journals is restricted within the main ledger system; posting is primarily performed 

by the Accountancy Services Manager, Financial Services Manager and Finance Systems Administrator 

and journals are reviewed prior to posting; the Director of Resources also has access to post journals.  

The journal entries are covered by the Auditors management override checks.  The Accountancy 

Services Manager (currently an interim) compiles the financial statements; these are checked by the 

Accountants and then issued to the Director of Resources.  The Director of Resources reviews the 

financial statements as a quality check prior to authorising for issue.  Financial systems are reviewed as 

part of the internal control environment by Internal Audit.  Estimations and judgements are disclosed in 

the financial statements as well as the use of experts.  Quarterly reports are prepared for the Executive 

Committee with year-end as an outturn report.  Within financial processes in particular we have dual 

authorisation, segregation of duties, controls for company updates and other procedures in place; our 

procedures identify the segregation - some are for verification purposes and some are for approval 

purposes.  The Internal Audit plan is risk based and the work performed covers all significant risk areas 

of the Council's operations.  The Council has a money laundering policy and Treasury Management 

Practices.  The risk register is considered by the Senior Management Team (SMT) on a quarterly basis 

and the Section 151 Officer is a member of the SMT.  If there are mitigations or financial risk that involve 

finances, the Section 151 Officer considers and incorporates those into budgets and financial plans.  All 

reports to the Executive Committee include any associated risks and finances. 

2. What have you determined to be the classes of 

accounts, transactions and disclosures most at risk to 

fraud? 

There are no particular areas that are considered a fraud risk.  The Council has more rigour around 

housing benefits, council tax, housing and licensing as any Council would; and recruitment, payroll, IT, 

procurement and treasury as any organisation would. 

3. Are you aware of any instances of actual, suspected 

or alleged fraud, errors or other irregularities either 

within Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council as a whole, 

or within specific departments since 1 April 2021? If so, 

please provide details

The Council is not aware of any instances of actual, suspected or alleged fraud, errors or other 

irregularities either within Barrow Borough Council as a whole or within specific departments since 1 April 

2021.
10

P
age 142

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

4. As a management team, how do you communicate 

risk issues (including fraud) to those charged with 

governance?                                                                                         

The Audit and Governance Committee receives the reports from Internal Audit work, external audit work, 

any other inspection, from the Section 151 Officer, the Monitoring Officer (also the Data Protection Officer) 

and others as appropriate.  The fraud policies (including Fraud Response Plan) are approved by Full 

Council and Audit and Governance Committee are made aware of any changes made during their review.  

Any issues are reported to the Audit and Governance Committee.

5. Have you identified any specific fraud risks? If so, 

please provide details

Do you have any concerns there are areas that are at 

risk of fraud?

Are there particular locations within Barrow-in-Furness 

Borough Council where fraud is more likely to  occur?

No specific fraud risks have been identified.

The Council has more rigour around housing benefits, council tax, housing and licensing as any Council 

would; and recruitment, payroll, IT, procurement and treasury as any organisation would.

The COVID-19 business support grants carried a risk of fraud and the process established by the Council 

addressed concerns and the Government requirements. 

6. What processes do Barrow-in-Furness Borough 

Council have in place to identify and respond to risks of 

fraud?

The Council’s anti-fraud and whistleblowing procedures include our Fraud Response Plan – these were last 

reviewed in March 2022.  To identify fraud we rely upon the ethical behaviour of employees and external 

providers/contractors.  The internal controls are designed to prevent fraud (segregation of duties and 

authorised signatories for example), and the Internal Audit plan/work is risk based.  The Council is a 

member of the National Anti-Fraud Network and participant of the National Fraud Initiative.

11

P
age 143

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

7. How do you assess the overall control environment for Barrow-

in-Furness Borough Council, including:

• the existence of internal controls, including segregation of 

duties; and

• the process for reviewing the effectiveness the system of 

internal control?  

If internal controls are not in place or not effective where are the 

risk areas and what mitigating actions have been taken?

What other controls are in place to help prevent, deter or detect 

fraud?

Are there any areas where there is a potential for override of 

controls or inappropriate influence over the financial reporting 

process (for example because of undue pressure to achieve 

financial targets)? If so, please provide details

The internal control environment is assessed through Internal Audit and the regular 

reports to the Audit and Governance Committee.  The individual audits include testing the 

existence and operation of the internal controls as defined (for the function/service being 

performed) and a review of the effectiveness of the internal controls to provide assurance 

to the Section 151 Officer, Senior Management Team and to inform the Annual 

Governance Statement.  Procurement and contract management has been highlighted as 

an aera of weakness in the 2020/21 audit opinion.  In August 2021 the Council 

commissioned a review of the procurement rules and procedures to ensure that it is fit for 

purpose and reflects best practice.  A new procurement strategy was adopted in January 

2022; managers and officers were involved in the review and training was delivered 

through STAR Procurement and the Council’s procurement lead.  Ongoing/ad-hoc 

training is delivered by the procurement lead and a procurement handbook has been 

issued as desktop support.  Weaknesses highlighted through audit reports have been 

designed out of the system, roles and responsibilities have been clearly established.  The 

new arrangements have been live since 1 April 2022.

The Council relies upon staff to raise any concerns, both informally as well as formally.  

There are no areas where there is a potential for override of controls or inappropriate 

influence over the financial reporting process – the Council does not have service 

performance targets that penalise staff, or performance related pay that rewards staff – or 

services, or contractors.  Financial targets are essential to meeting the Council’s 

objectives; procedures and processes are in place to ensure these are met without any 

undue pressure being required. 

8. Are there any areas where there is potential for misreporting? If 

so, please provide details

There are no particular areas where there is potential for misreporting.

12

P
age 144

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

9. How does Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 

communicate and encourage ethical behaviours 

and business processes of it’s staff and 

contractors? 

How do you encourage staff to report their concerns 

about fraud?

What concerns are staff expected to report about 

fraud? Have any significant issues been reported? If 

so, please provide details

The induction checklist for new starters requires managers to explain the way the Council operates (its 

governance), associated policies and procedures that all staff must be aware of and understand, 

together with the conditions and expectation of officers.  The Officer Code of Conduct is part of the 

Constitution.  Policy updates are sent out as emails alerts and Managers provide hard copies to those 

without computer access for their work.  The Values and Behaviours Framework is well established and 

includes honesty and integrity.  The Be Proud awards are the most visible element of the framework and 

this allows colleagues and councillor to nominate those that best demonstrate the Council’s values 

through their behaviours and going above and beyond in serving the Council.  The changes in flexible 

working introduced during COVID-19 have become permanently available in response to the staff “ask” 

through the Values and Behaviours Group.  The Framework is recognised within the Council Plan.

Staff are encouraged to report any concerns through line management, or through the whistleblowing 

procedure – reports from staff can be anonymous.  No significant issues have been reported. 

10. From a fraud and corruption perspective, what 

are considered to be high-risk posts?

How are the risks relating to these posts identified, 

assessed and managed?

The internal control environment exists to prevent fraud.  High risk posts could be considered to include 

those that award contracts – the award value is limited by the scheme of delegation and the evaluation 

process is not undertaken alone; those involved in recruitment - this is not undertaken alone and there 

are HR controls; those involved in payments – this is not undertaken alone, there is segregation of duty 

and approvals within Finance.  Ultimately the Senior Management Team have the bulk of the officer 

delegations but all of those are attached to underlying processes and therefore internal controls. 

11. Are you aware of any related party relationships 

or transactions that could give rise to instances of 

fraud? If so, please provide details

How do you mitigate the risks associated with fraud 

related to related party relationships and 

transactions?

The Council is not aware of any related party relationships or transactions that could give rise to 

instances of fraud.  The related parties are declared as part of our year-end procedure, to quantify those 

for the notes to the accounts.  Separately elected members and officers complete declarations which set 

out any relationships that may impact the decision-making process and those are supplemented with a 

declaration at each committee meeting where an interest may just become apparent.  Members interests 

are published on the Councils website.

13

P
age 145

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

12. What arrangements are in place to report fraud 

issues and risks to the Audit and Governance 

Committee? 

How does the Audit and Governance Committee 

exercise oversight over management's processes 

for identifying and responding to risks of fraud and 

breaches of internal control?

What has been the outcome of these arrangements 

so far this year?

The review of anti-fraud and whistleblowing procedures and facilities is monitored by the Audit and 

Governance Committee.  This includes the review of the relevance and requirements of the policies and 

the reporting of activity from the fraud hotline.  The policy and procedure were reviewed in March 2022 

and reported to the Audit and Governance Committee.

The fraud hotline activity is reported quarterly and for 2021/22 there were 60 calls and no fraudulent 

activity was identified; no calls were received in relation to staff.  The Internal Audit team holds these 

records.  For April to July 2022 there were 24 calls and no fraudulent activity was identified; no calls 

were received in relation to staff.

13. Are you aware of any whistle blowing potential 

or complaints by potential whistle blowers? If so, 

what has been your response?

Management are not aware of any whistle blowing potential or complaints by potential whistle blowers. 

14. Have any reports been made under the Bribery 

Act? If so, please provide details

No reports have been made under the Bribery Act. 

14

P
age 146

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Law and regulations

Matters in relation to laws and regulations

ISA (UK) 250 requires us to consider the impact of laws and regulations in an audit of the financial statements.

Management, with the oversight of the Audit and Governance Committee, is responsible for ensuring that Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council's 

operations are conducted in accordance with laws and regulations, including those that determine amounts in the financial statements. 

As auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud or 

error, taking into account the appropriate legal and regulatory framework. As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to make 

inquiries of management and the Audit and Governance Committee as to whether the body is in compliance with laws and regulations. Where we 

become aware of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance we need to gain an understanding of the non-compliance and the possible effect 

on the financial statements.

Risk assessment questions have been set out below together with responses from management.

15

P
age 147

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Impact of laws and regulations

Question Management response

1. How does management gain assurance that all relevant laws 

and regulations have been complied with?

What arrangements does Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council have 

in place to prevent and detect non-compliance with laws and 

regulations?

Are you aware of any changes to the Barrow-in-Furness Borough 

Council's regulatory environment that may have a significant impact 

on the Council’s financial statements?

The Council relies on the Monitoring Officer to prevent and detect non-compliance with laws and 

regulations, and that Heads of Services will flag issues that require the Monitoring Officer’s 

opinion or attention.  The Monitoring Officer ensures compliance with the Council’s Constitution. 

The Council also employs a number of professional, qualified officers in particular fields of 

expertise and also obtains external legal advice when required; generally for clarification in 

specific circumstances.  All Executive Committee reports include consideration of the legal 

aspects of any decision for Members. 

COVID-19 introduced new requirements and duties for the Council which are explained in the 

financial statements. Local Government Reorganisation will result in Barrow Borough Council’s 

finances becoming part of Westmorland and Furness Council – vesting day is 1 April 2022. 

2. How is the Audit and Governance Committee provided with 

assurance that all relevant laws and regulations have been 

complied with?

The Monitoring Officer has overall responsibility for assuring those charged with governance that

all relevant laws and regulations have been complied with. The Monitoring Officer attends Audit

and Governance Committee, Executive Committee and Full Council meetings. The legal aspects

of any decision for Members are disclosed in the reports presented at the Executive Committee.

3. Have there been any instances of non-compliance or suspected 

non-compliance with laws and regulation since 1 April 2021 with an 

on-going impact on the 2021/22 financial statements? If so, please 

provide details

There have been no instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with law and 

regulation since 1 April 2021. 

4. Are there any actual or potential litigation or claims that would 

affect the financial statements? If so, please provide details

There are no actual or potential litigation or claims that would affect the financial statements.

16

P
age 148

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Impact of laws and regulations

Question Management response

5. What arrangements does Barrow-in-Furness 

Borough Council have in place to identify, evaluate 

and account for litigation or claims? 

Claims or proceeding against the Council are raised with the Senior Management Team and would be

dealt with either by the Council’s insurers, Head of Legal and Governance, retained solicitors or an

alternate if specific expertise were required. Insurance is a mitigation method and the Council holds an

amount for excesses in reserve. The Council also holds an uninsured losses reserve but that is only

expected to be used in exceptional circumstances, such as a significant fine or unbudgeted settlement.

6. Have there been any reports from other regulatory        

bodies, such as HM Revenues and Customs, which 

indicate non-compliance? If so, please provide 

details

There have been no reports from other regulatory bodies that indicate non-compliance.

17

P
age 149

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Related Parties

Matters in relation to Related Parties

Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council are required to disclose transactions with bodies/individuals that would be classed as related parties.  These 

may include:

■ bodies that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council;

■ associates;

■ joint ventures;

■ a body that has an interest in the Council that gives it significant influence over the Council;

■ key management personnel, and close members of the family of key management personnel, and

■ post-employment benefit plans (pension fund) for the benefit of employees of the Council, or of any body that is a related party of the 

Council.

A disclosure is required if a transaction (or series of transactions) is material on either side, i.e. if a transaction is immaterial from the Council’s 

perspective but material from a related party viewpoint then the Council must disclose it.

ISA (UK) 550 requires us to review your procedures for identifying related party transactions and obtain an understanding of the controls that you 

have established to identify such transactions. We will also carry out testing to ensure the related party transaction disclosures you make in the 

financial statements are complete and accurate. 

18

P
age 150

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Related Parties

Question Management response

1. Have there been any changes in the related 

parties including those disclosed in Barrow-in-

Furness Borough Council's 2020/21 financial 

statements? 

If so please summarise: 

• the nature of the relationship between these 

related parties and Barrow-in-Furness Borough 

Council

• Whether Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 

has entered into or plans to enter into any 

transactions with these related parties

• the type and purpose of these transactions 

There is no material difference in the related parties disclosed in 2020/21 to 2021/22.

2. What controls does Barrow-in-Furness Borough 

Council have in place to identify, account for and 

disclose related party transactions and 

relationships?

The Finance Department request all service managers, senior managers and elected members to 

annually certify their related party transaction relationships and transactions.  This is easily compared 

year to year.  The declarations made through the committee process are also checked against the 

declarations provided to Finance and any discrepancies resolved prior to finalising the note to the 

accounts. 

3. What controls are in place to authorise and 

approve significant transactions and arrangements 

with related parties?

Transactions and arrangements with related parties would be subject to normal procedures.  For 

example, if it were a significant contract award this would be with the Executive Committee, if it were 

lower value then it would be with the officer delegated plus another officer for segregation.  Those 

elected members and officers with a related party interest would be excluded as necessary. 

4. What controls are in place to authorise and 

approve significant transactions outside of the 

normal course of business?

The scheme of delegation assigns certain responsibilities to the Senior Management Team, including the 

Chief Executive.  If a significant transaction outside of normal operations was required and the officer 

delegations could not be applied, that would require either an extraordinary Executive Committee or an 

extraordinary Full Council meeting depending on the matter/item. 
19

P
age 151

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Going Concern

Matters in relation to Going Concern

The audit approach for going concern is based on the requirements of ISA (UK) 570, as interpreted by Practice Note 10: Audit of financial 

statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020). It also takes into account the National Audit Office's 

Supplementary Guidance Note (SGN) 01: Going Concern – Auditors’ responsibilities for local public bodies.

Practice Note 10 confirms that in many (but not all) public sector bodies, the use of the going concern basis of accounting is not a matter of 

significant focus of the auditor’s time and resources because the applicable financial reporting frameworks envisage that the going concern basis 

for accounting will apply where the body’s services will continue to be delivered by the public sector. In such cases, a material uncertainty related 

to going concern is unlikely to exist. 

For this reason, a straightforward and standardised approach to compliance with ISA (UK) 570 will often be appropriate for public sector bodies. 

This will be a proportionate approach to going concern based on the body’s circumstances and the applicable financial reporting framework. In 

line with Practice Note 10, the auditor’s assessment of going concern should take account of the statutory nature of the body and the fact that the 

financial reporting framework for local government bodies presume going concern in the event of anticipated continuation of provision of the 

services provided by the body. Therefore, the public sector auditor applies a ‘continued provision of service approach’, unless there is clear 

evidence to the contrary. This would also apply even where those services are planned to transfer to another body, as in such circumstances, the 

underlying services will continue. 

For many public sector bodies, the financial sustainability of the body and the services it provides are more likely to be of significant public 

interest than the application of the going concern basis of accounting. Financial sustainability is a key component of value for money work and it 

is through such work that it will be considered. 

P
age 152

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Going Concern

Question Management response

1. What processes and controls does management have 

in place to identify events and / or conditions which may 

indicate that the statutory services being provided by 

Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council will no longer 

continue?

The going concern review is undertaken by the Senior Management Team and considers all 

available information about the future, which is at least, but not limited to the next twelve months 

from the end of the reporting period.  The review is documented and presented for the Audit and 

Governance Committee to endorse.  The matters considered are group into forecasts and budgets 

(reviewed quarterly), financial statements, working capital facility, contingent liabilities, risk 

management (reviewed quarterly), medium and long term plans, new legislation, cash flow timing, 

governance, and the political environment.

2. Are management aware of any factors which may 

mean for Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council that either 

statutory services will no longer be provided or that 

funding for statutory services will be discontinued? If so, 

what are they?

Management are not aware of any factors which may mean for Barrow Borough Council that either 

statutory services will no longer be provided or that funding for statutory services will be 

discontinued.

3. With regard to the statutory services currently 

provided by Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council, does 

Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council expect to continue 

to deliver them for the foreseeable future, or will they be 

delivered by related public authorities if there are any 

plans for Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council to cease to 

exist?

The statutory services currently provided by Barrow Borough Council will be delivered by 

Westmorland and Furness Council from 1 April 2023.

4. Are management satisfied that the financial reporting 

framework permits Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 

to prepare its financial statements on a going concern 

basis? Are management satisfied that preparing financial 

statements on a going concern basis will provide a 

faithful representation of the items in the financial 

Management are satisfied that the financial reporting framework permits Barrow Borough Council to 

prepare its financial statements on a going concern basis.  Management are satisfied that preparing 

the financial statements on a going concern basis will provide a faithful representation of the items 

in the financial statements. P
age 153

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Accounting estimates

Matters in relation to accounting estimates

ISA (UK) 540 (Revised December 2018)  requires auditors to understand and assess a body’s internal controls over accounting estimates, 

including:

• The nature and extent of oversight and governance over management’s financial reporting process relevant to accounting estimates;

• How management identifies the need for and applies specialised skills or knowledge related to accounting estimates;

• How the body’s risk management process identifies and addresses risks relating to accounting estimates;

• The body’s information system as it relates to accounting estimates; 

• The body’s control activities in relation to accounting estimates; and

• How management reviews the outcomes of previous accounting estimates.

As part of this process auditors also need to obtain an understanding of the role of those charged with governance, which is particularly important 

where the estimates have high estimation uncertainty, or require significant judgement. 

Specifically do Audit and Governance Committee members:

• Understand the characteristics of the methods and models used to make the accounting estimates and the risks related to them;

• Oversee management’s process for making accounting estimates, including the use of models, and the monitoring activities undertaken by 

management; and

• Evaluate how management made the accounting estimates?

We would ask the Audit and Governance Committee to satisfy itself that the arrangements for accounting estimates are adequate. 

22

P
age 154

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

1. What are the classes of transactions, events and 

conditions, that are significant to the financial 

statements that give rise to the need for, or changes in, 

accounting estimate and related disclosures?

The Council discloses the need for judgement around going concern, classification of leases, asset values, 

heritage assets and pensions.  This judgement is similar to previous years. 

2. How does the Council’s risk management process 

identify and address risks relating to accounting 

estimates?

The risk register is considered by the Senior Management Team on a quarterly basis and the Section 151 

Officer is a member of the Senior Management Team.  If there are mitigations or financial risk that involve 

finances, the Section 151 Officer considers and incorporates those into budgets and financial plans.  All 

reports to the Executive Committee include any associated risks and finances. 

3. How does management identify the methods, 

assumptions or source data, and the need for changes 

in them, in relation to key accounting estimates?

Through professional judgement, through experience, through CIPFA and codes of practice, through 

collaboration with colleagues (Cumbria Wide Accountancy Group), through external expertise where 

necessary. 

4. How do management review the outcomes of 

previous accounting estimates?
Through variance analysis and reflecting on the outturn against future budget projections.  The assumptions 

underpinning the budgets are presented to Members as part of the budget setting process and the Medium 

Term Financial Plan, and as those require variation the movements are identified and projections are 

reforecast. 

5. Were any changes made to the estimation processes 

in 2021/22 and, if so, what was the reason for these?
There were no changes to the estimation process in 2021/22.

P
age 155

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management
Question Management response

6. How does management identify the need for and 

apply specialised skills or knowledge related to 

accounting estimates?

The Accountants that the Council employs are experienced and have full knowledge of the services that 

they account for – this is supplemented by CPD, and professional updates following issue of the CIPFA 

Code for the year from FAN and Grant Thornton.  The technical aspects of budget setting sit with the 

Accountancy Services Manager (as Chief Accountant), and all estimates are subject to review by the 

Section 151 Officer in accordance with their significance.  The Council has retained an interim Accounting 

Manager to support the budget setting and closedown processes due to retirements.  The accounting 

estimates that involve external expertise cover non-current assets and the pension scheme. 

7. How does the Council determine what control 

activities are needed for significant accounting 

estimates, including the controls at any service 

providers or management experts? 

The external expertise is commissioned/instructed and the requirements are set out in that initial request.  

There is an ongoing dialogue with the valuer directly as there is an ongoing exchange and validation of 

information required.  There is less contact needed with the actuary.  The experts provide the figures and 

supporting evidence and management review the results with existing knowledge and experience prior to 

those being brought into the financial statements. 

8. How does management monitor the operation of 

control activities related to accounting estimates, 

including the key controls at any service providers or 

management experts? 

There is regular contact with the Council's appointed valuer during the period the work is undertaken.  The 

contact with the actuary depends on the queries that management has; Cumbria County Council lead on 

contact with the valuer and any matters requiring a broader view are discussed by the Cumbria Chief 

Finance Officer group.  Both providers work to timetables established with the initial request/instruction.

9. What is the nature and extent of oversight and 

governance over management’s financial reporting 

process relevant to accounting estimates, including:

- Management’s process for making significant 

accounting estimates

- The methods and models used

- The resultant accounting estimates included in the 

financial statements.

The accounting policies set out the process of obtaining and calculating accounting estimates.  The 

accounting policies are presented to the Audit and Governance Committee and any variation from those is 

reported with the financial statements.  The outturn is also presented to the Senior Management Team and 

Executive Committee.  The significant items are identified and explained - such as a significant revaluation 

gain or loss, or the COVID-19 funds distributed.  Some of the significant accounting estimates do not impact 

the General Fund or Housing Revenue Account under statutory provisions, but those approving the 

accounts should understand the basis for their preparation. P
age 156

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

10. Are management aware of any transactions, 

events, conditions (or changes in these) that may 

give rise to recognition or disclosure of significant 

accounting estimates that require significant 

judgement (other than those in Appendix A)? If so, 

what are they?

Management are not aware of transactions, events or conditions (or changes in these) that may give rise 

to recognition or disclosure of significant accounting estimates that require significant judgement (other 

than those in Appendix A).

11. Why are management satisfied that their 

arrangements for the accounting estimates, as 

detailed in Appendix A, are reasonable?

Management are satisfied that their arrangements for the accounting estimates as detailed in Appendix 

A are reasonable because those are based on accounting policies, and the knowledge and expertise of 

qualified, competent accountants, and subject to review by the Section 151 Officer. 

12. How is the Audit Committee provided with 

assurance that the arrangements for accounting 

estimates are adequate ?

The accounting policies set out the process of obtaining and calculating accounting estimates.  The 

accounting policies are presented to the Audit and Governance Committee and any variation from the 

closedown process is reported later with the financial statements.  Significant items are identified and 

explained individually and a variance analysis is presented to highlight the rationale behind the end 

results.  Some of the significant accounting estimates do not impact the General Fund or Housing 

Revenue Account under statutory provisions, but those approving the accounts should understand the 

basis for their preparation. 

25

P
age 157

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Estimate Method / model used to make 

the estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of uncertainty

- Consideration of alternative 

estimates

Has there 

been a

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Land and 

buildings 

valuations

Depreciated historic costs and 

existing use value.

Application of 

accounting policy.

External valuer. Recognised uncertainty as part of critical 

judgements.

No

Council 

Dwellings 

valuations

Existing user value for social 

housing.

Application of 

accounting policy.

External valuer. Recognised uncertainty as part of critical 

judgements.

No

Depreciation Straight line depreciation over the 

useful life of the asset.

Application of 

accounting policy.

External valuer. Recognised uncertainty as part of critical 

judgements.

No

Valuation of 

defined benefit 

net pension 

fund liabilities

The pension fund liabilities have 

been assessed on an actuarial 

basis using the projected unit 

credit method - an estimate 

of the pensions that will be 

payable in future years 

dependent on assumptions about 

mortality rates, salary rates and 

other factors. 

Application of 

accounting policy.

External actuary 

and Cumbria 

County Council 

as the 

administering 

authority.

Recognised uncertainty as part of critical 

judgements.

No

26

P
age 158

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Estimate Method / model used to 

make the estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of uncertainty

- Consideration of alternative 

estimates

Has there 

been a

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Level 2 and 3 

Investments & 

borrowings

Level 2: inputs other than 

quoted prices included within 

Level 1 that are observable for 

the asset or liability, either 

directly or indirectly.

Level 3: unobservable inputs for 

the asset or liability. 

Application of existing 

accounting policy. 

External treasury 

advisors.

PPE values are recognised uncertainty as 

part of critical judgements. 

No

Significant 

provisions & 

accruals

Income is recorded when it is 

earned rather than when it is 

received, and expenses are 

recorded when goods and 

services are received rather 

than when the payment is 

made.  Provisions are made 

where an event has taken place 

that gives the authority a legal 

or constructive obligation that 

probably requires settlement by 

a transfer of economic benefits 

or service potential, and a 

reliable estimate can be made 

of the amount of the obligation.

Application of existing 

accounting policy. 

No. The provisions and accruals are evidence 

based and assumptions made within that 

are disclosed within working papers. 

Where estimation is made, that is based on 

existing knowledge, historical trend, or 

experience.

No

Credit loss & 

impairment 
Where debts may not be 

settled, the balance of debtors 

Application of existing 

accounting policy. 

No. The “bad debt provisions” are evidence 

based and assumptions made within the 

No
27

P
age 159

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to 

one or more member firms, as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member 

firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not 

provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 160

A
genda Item

 15
A

ppendix 2



 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 1 

Commercial in confidence 

 
 

Land & Buildings valuation estimate 

 

Question Management response 

1. Were any risks identified relating to the 

material accuracy of this accounting estimate for 

the financial year and, if so, how were these 

risks addressed?  

No.  The vast majority of the Council’s assets were 

valued by Montagu Evans under new instructions for 

2021-2022.  The use of an external expert is a valuable 

part of the process, however management review and 

challenge the output of the valuation work and apply both 

local knowledge before the accounting estimates are 

incorporated into the financial statements. 

2. How do management select, or design, the 

methods, used in respect of this accounting 

estimate, including the models used? 

Were any changes made to these methods or 

models in 2021/22, and if so what was the 

reason for the change?  

Assets are initially measured at the purchase price plus 

attributable costs.  Any assets acquired other than 

purchase are carried at current value.  Assets are carried 

and measured in categories: 

 infrastructure, community assets and assets under 

construction – depreciated historical cost  

 dwellings – current value, determined using the basis 

of existing use value for social housing (EUV-SH)  

 surplus assets – the current value measurement 

base is fair value, estimated at highest and best use  

 all other assets – current value – in existing use 

(EUV) or where the asset is of a specialist nature 

and has no active market, depreciated replacement 

cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of fair value  

No changes were made in 2021/22. 

3. How do management select the assumptions 

used in respect of this accounting estimate? 

Were any changes made to these assumptions 

in 2021/22, and if so what was the reason for the 

change?  

The assumptions underpinning asset valuations are the 

relevant value, the useful life, any changes during the 

year, and the condition at the Balance Sheet date.  For 

DRC, the building cost indices and the size of the asset 

are also key assumptions. 

No changes were made in 2021/22. 

4. How do management select the source data 

used in respect of this accounting estimate? 

Were any changes made to this source data in 

2021/22, and if so what was the reason for the 

change? 

The land and building assets held on the Balance Sheet 

are recorded in a specialised software package; the 

valuation records from previous years are always 

provided to the current year valuer; information relating to 

asset management is held within the Council and made 

available to the valuer; the building cost indices are 

sourced by the valuer. 

No changes to the source were made in 2021/22. 

5. Were any specialised skills or knowledge 

used in respect of this accounting estimates, and 

if so how were these specialist skills procured? 

Yes.  The valuer was procured through a Crown 

Commercial Services framework and the accountancy 

skills exist within the team.  The management review of 

the valuer’s work is based on experience and local 

knowledge. 

Page 161

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3



 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 2 

Commercial in confidence 

Question Management response 

6. How do management monitor the operation of 

control activities in relation to this accounting 

estimates, including the control activities at any 

service providers or management experts?  

With the valuer being new to the Council there were 

several progress meetings with management following 

the scoping and inception meetings.  Montagu Evans 

engaged several valuers to cover the various asset types 

(such as Council dwellings) and the Accounting Manager 

led on behalf of the Council, with management joining 

weekly update meetings. 

The accounting for assets follows existing accounting 

policy. 

7. In management’s opinion, are their adequate 

controls in place over the calculation of this 

accounting estimate, including those at any 

service provider or management expert used, 

and if so how is the robustness of the key 

controls assessed?  

In management’s opinion the controls around the 

calculation of this accounting estimate are robust, 

including the work undertaken by the valuer.  The 

process the Council has applied for 2021/22 is rigorous 

whilst also being streamlined with full disclosure of valuer 

evidence and source material.  Management’s review of 

the valuer’s reports is a sufficient assessment of the 

controls required. 

8. Were any changes made to the key control 

activities this year? If so please provide details.  

No changes were made to the activities.  The Council 

provided the valuer with all records and information 

relating to the assets to be valued.  The valuer provided 

the Council will all valuations and supporting 

documentation.  The activities have achieved the 

intended aim and management retained control over the 

process. 

9. How do management consider the estimation 

uncertainty related to this accounting estimate 

and address this uncertainty when selecting the 

point estimate to use?  

To recognise the uncertainty the accounting estimate the 

Council includes the value of PPE and the depreciation of 

PPE within the disclosures within the major sources of 

estimate uncertainty on the financial statements. 

10. How do management consider the sensitivity 

of the estimate to the methods and assumptions 

used and identify the range of reasonably 

possible outcomes for disclosure in the financial 

statements? 

A 10% value sensitivity is used to illustrate the impact of 

impairing the values used in the financial statements; and 

a reduction of 5 years in the useful life of Council 

dwellings is illustrated in terms of the depreciation impact, 

dwellings are the most significant asset value. 

 
 
 
  

Page 162

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3



 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 3 

Commercial in confidence 

Council Dwellings valuation estimate 

 

Question Management response 

1. Were any risks identified relating to the 

material accuracy of this accounting estimate for 

the financial year and, if so, how were these 

risks addressed?  

No.  The Council dwellings were valued by Montagu 

Evans under new instructions for 2021-2022.  The use of 

an external expert is a valuable part of the process, 

however management review and challenge the output of 

the valuation work and apply both local knowledge before 

the accounting estimates are incorporated into the 

financial statements. 

2. How do management select, or design, the 

methods, used in respect of this accounting 

estimate, including the models used? 

Were any changes made to these methods or 

models in 2021/22, and if so what was the 

reason for the change?  

Dwellings are carried at current value, determined using 

the basis of existing use value for social housing (EUV-

SH).  

No changes were made in 2021/22. 

3. How do management select the assumptions 

used in respect of this accounting estimate? 

Were any changes made to these assumptions 

in 2021/22, and if so what was the reason for the 

change?  

The assumptions underpinning dwelling valuations are 

the relevant value, the useful life, any changes during the 

year, and the condition at the Balance Sheet date.  For 

dwellings there is also a reduction from the regional 

adjustment factor in recognition of their status as social 

housing. 

No changes were made in 2021/22. 

4. How do management select the source data 

used in respect of this accounting estimate? 

Were any changes made to this source data in 

2021/22, and if so what was the reason for the 

change? 

The dwelling Balance Sheet values are recorded in a 

specialised software package; the valuation records from 

previous years are always provided to the current year 

valuer; information relating to asset management is held 

within the Council (including the Housing Department). 

No changes to the source were made in 2021/22. 

5. Were any specialised skills or knowledge 

used in respect of this accounting estimates, and 

if so how were these specialist skills procured? 

Yes.  The valuer was procured through a Crown 

Commercial Services framework and the accountancy 

skills exist within the team.  The management review of 

the valuer’s work is based on experience and local 

knowledge. 

6. How do management monitor the operation of 

control activities in relation to this accounting 

estimates, including the control activities at any 

service providers or management experts?  

With the valuer being new to the Council there were 

several progress meetings with management following 

the scoping and inception meetings.  Montagu Evans 

engaged several valuers to cover the various asset types 

(such as Council dwellings) and the Accounting Manager 

led on behalf of the Council, with management joining 

weekly update meetings. 

The accounting for assets follows existing accounting 

policy. 

7. In management’s opinion, are their adequate 

controls in place over the calculation of this 

accounting estimate, including those at any 

service provider or management expert used, 

and if so how is the robustness of the key 

controls assessed?  

In management’s opinion the controls around the 

calculation of this accounting estimate are robust, 

including the work undertaken by the valuer.  The 

process the Council has applied for 2021/22 is rigorous 

whilst also being streamlined with full disclosure of valuer 

evidence and source material.  Management’s review of 

the valuer’s reports is a sufficient assessment of the 

controls required. 

Page 163

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3



 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 4 

Commercial in confidence 

Question Management response 

8. Were any changes made to the key control 

activities this year? If so please provide details.  

No changes were made to the activities.  The Council 

provided the valuer with all records and information 

relating to the assets to be valued.  The valuer provided 

the Council will all valuations and supporting 

documentation.  The activities have achieved the 

intended aim and management retained control over the 

process.  

9. How do management consider the estimation 

uncertainty related to this accounting estimate 

and address this uncertainty when selecting the 

point estimate to use?  

To recognise the uncertainty the accounting estimate the 

Council includes the value of PPE and the depreciation of 

PPE within the disclosures within the major sources of 

estimate uncertainty on the financial statements. 

10. How do management consider the sensitivity 

of the estimate to the methods and assumptions 

used and identify the range of reasonably 

possible outcomes for disclosure in the financial 

statements? 

A 10% value sensitivity is used to illustrate the impact of 

impairing the values used in the financial statements; and 

a reduction of 5 years in the useful life of Council 

dwellings is illustrated in terms of the depreciation impact, 

dwellings are the most significant asset value. 

 

 

 

  

Page 164

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3



 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 5 

Commercial in confidence 

Defined benefit net pension liability 

Question Management response 

1. Were any risks identified relating to the 

material accuracy of this accounting estimate for 

the financial year and, if so, how were these 

risks addressed?  

No.  The pension fund is administered by Cumbria 

County Council and the actuarial valuation performed by 

Mercers.  The pension figures are significant and IAS19 

must be properly applied.  The Council provides a set of 

data to the pension fund including the contributions 

relating to the financial year.  The asset and liability are of 

most significance and are the summation of data 

provided by all scheme members, the estimated liabilities 

and worth of the assets.  The Mercer year-end report is 

accompanied by a commentary of the figures and 

assumptions.  Management reviews the pension 

information provided to ensure that it reflects the data 

provided and that any significant change in the net 

position is understood. 

2. How do management select, or design, the 

methods, used in respect of this accounting 

estimate, including the models used? 

Were any changes made to these methods or 

models in 2021/22, and if so what was the 

reason for the change?  

The Council’s existing accounting policies comply with 

the requirements of IAS19.  

No changes were made in 2021/22. 

3. How do management select the assumptions 

used in respect of this accounting estimate? 

Were any changes made to these assumptions 

in 2021/22, and if so what was the reason for the 

change?  

The assumptions are applied across the pension fund 

following a consultation with scheme members.  The 

Council can comment on the assumptions and to ensure 

that any significant changes are considered. 

No changes were made in 2021/22. 

4. How do management select the source data 

used in respect of this accounting estimate? 

Were any changes made to this source data in 

2021/22, and if so what was the reason for the 

change? 

The member data such as the contributions in the year, 

or retirements, is held within the HRP system and 

payments appear within the main accounting system.  

The source data for assets is held by Cumbria County 

Council. 

No changes to the source were made in 2021/22. 

5. Were any specialised skills or knowledge 

used in respect of this accounting estimates, and 

if so how were these specialist skills procured? 

Yes.  The pension fund actuary, Mercers, were retained 

by Cumbria County Council with the cost shared between 

scheme members.  The IAS19 accountancy skills exist 

within the team.  The management review of the actuarial 

report is based on experience and local knowledge. 

6. How do management monitor the operation of 

control activities in relation to this accounting 

estimates, including the control activities at any 

service providers or management experts?  

The Council liaise with Cumbria County Council to ensure 

that the annual programme from data provision to 

actuarial reporting is on time and that Mercers are on 

schedule.  There is additional liaison around the version 

control where asset valuations are re-run should there be 

a significant event that was not reflected in the figures 

initially. 

The accounting for IAS19 follows existing accounting 

policy. 

7. In management’s opinion, are their adequate 

controls in place over the calculation of this 

accounting estimate, including those at any 

service provider or management expert used, 

and if so how is the robustness of the key 

controls assessed?  

In management’s opinion the controls around the 

calculation of this accounting estimate are robust, 

including the work undertaken by the actuary.  The 

process the Council has applied for 2021/22 is well 

established.  Management’s review of the actuary’s report 

is a sufficient assessment of the controls required. 

Page 165

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3



 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 6 

Commercial in confidence 

Question Management response 

8. Were any changes made to the key control 

activities this year? If so please provide details.  

No changes were made to the activities.  

9. How do management consider the estimation 

uncertainty related to this accounting estimate 

and address this uncertainty when selecting the 

point estimate to use?  

To recognise the uncertainty the accounting estimate the 

Council includes the value of pensions liability within the 

disclosures within the major sources of estimate 

uncertainty in the financial statements. 

10. How do management consider the sensitivity 

of the estimate to the methods and assumptions 

used and identify the range of reasonably 

possible outcomes for disclosure in the financial 

statements? 

A 1% discount rate, 1% inflation, 1 year member life 

expectancy, and 1% investment return, are used 

individually to illustrate the impact of the financial 

sensitivity of the values used in the financial statements. 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 166

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3



 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 7 

Commercial in confidence 

Depreciation 

Question Management response 

1. Were any risks identified relating to the 

material accuracy of this accounting estimate for 

the financial year and, if so, how were these 

risks addressed?  

No.  The vast majority of the Council’s assets were 

valued by Montagu Evans under new instructions for 

2021-2022.  The use of an external expert is a valuable 

part of the process, however management review and 

challenge the output of the valuation work and apply both 

local knowledge before the accounting estimates are 

incorporated into the financial statements. 

2. How do management select, or design, the 

methods, used in respect of this accounting 

estimate, including the models used? 

Were any changes made to these methods or 

models in 2021/22, and if so what was the 

reason for the change?  

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant, 

Equipment and Vehicle assets by the systematic 

allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful 

lives.  An exception is made for assets without a 

determinable finite useful life (such as freehold land and 

certain Community Assets) and assets that are not yet 

available for use (assets under construction).  

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:  

 dwellings and other buildings – straight-line 

allocation over the useful life of the property as 

estimated by the valuer  

 plant, equipment, and vehicles – straight-line 

allocation over the useful life of each class of assets 

in the Balance Sheet, as advised by a suitably 

qualified officer  

 infrastructure – straight-line allocation over the useful 

life of the asset. 

No changes were made in 2021/22. 

3. How do management select the assumptions 

used in respect of this accounting estimate? 

Were any changes made to these assumptions 

in 2021/22, and if so what was the reason for the 

change?  

The assumptions underpinning asset valuations are the 

relevant value, the useful life, any changes during the 

year, and the condition at the Balance Sheet date.  For 

DRC, the building cost indices and the size of the asset 

are also key assumptions. 

No changes were made in 2021/22. 

4. How do management select the source data 

used in respect of this accounting estimate? 

Were any changes made to this source data in 

2021/22, and if so what was the reason for the 

change? 

The assets held on the Balance Sheet are recorded in a 

specialised software package; the valuation records from 

previous years are always provided to the current year 

valuer; information relating to asset management is held 

within the Council and made available to the valuer; the 

building cost indices are sourced by the valuer. 

No changes to the source were made in 2021/22. 

5. Were any specialised skills or knowledge 

used in respect of this accounting estimates, and 

if so how were these specialist skills procured? 

Yes.  The valuer was procured through a Crown 

Commercial Services framework and the accountancy 

skills exist within the team.  The management review of 

the valuer’s work is based on experience and local 

knowledge. 

Page 167

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3



 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 8 

Commercial in confidence 

Question Management response 

6. How do management monitor the operation of 

control activities in relation to this accounting 

estimates, including the control activities at any 

service providers or management experts?  

With the valuer being new to the Council there were 

several progress meetings with management following 

the scoping and inception meetings.  Montagu Evans 

engaged several valuers to cover the various asset types 

(such as Council dwellings) and the Accounting Manager 

led on behalf of the Council, with management joining 

weekly update meetings. 

The accounting for assets follows existing accounting 

policy. 

7. In management’s opinion, are their adequate 

controls in place over the calculation of this 

accounting estimate, including those at any 

service provider or management expert used, 

and if so how is the robustness of the key 

controls assessed?  

In management’s opinion the controls around the 

calculation of this accounting estimate are robust, 

including the work undertaken by the valuer.  The 

process the Council has applied for 2021/22 is rigorous 

whilst also being streamlined with full disclosure of valuer 

evidence and source material.  Management’s review of 

the valuer’s reports is a sufficient assessment of the 

controls required. 

8. Were any changes made to the key control 

activities this year? If so please provide details.  

No changes were made to the activities.  The Council 

provided the valuer with all records and information 

relating to the assets to be valued.  The valuer provided 

the Council will all valuations and supporting 

documentation.  The activities have achieved the 

intended aim and management retained control over the 

process.  

9. How do management consider the estimation 

uncertainty related to this accounting estimate 

and address this uncertainty when selecting the 

point estimate to use?  

To recognise the uncertainty the accounting estimate the 

Council includes the value of PPE and the depreciation of 

PPE within the disclosures within the major sources of 

estimate uncertainty on the financial statements. 

10. How do management consider the sensitivity 

of the estimate to the methods and assumptions 

used and identify the range of reasonably 

possible outcomes for disclosure in the financial 

statements? 

A 10% value sensitivity is used to illustrate the impact of 

impairing the values used in the financial statements; and 

a reduction of 5 years in the useful life of Council 

dwellings is illustrated in terms of the depreciation impact, 

dwellings are the most significant asset value. 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 168

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3



 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 9 

Commercial in confidence 

Significant Provisions and accruals estimate 

Question Management response 

1. Were any risks identified relating to the 

material accuracy of this accounting estimate for 

the financial year and, if so, how were these 

risks addressed?  

No.  The Council holds provisions for Business Rate 

appeals and the MMI Scheme of Arrangement; both are 

based upon the best information available at the year-end 

upon which the values are based.  Accruals are informed 

by certificates from Heads of Service and Project 

Managers to ensure that all commitments are captured.  

Purchases order commitments and invoices presented for 

payment around year-end are reviewed by the 

Accountants and accrued to the appropriate financial 

year.  The Accountants also prepare accruals in relation 

to items such as the VAT return, bank reconciliation, 

grant claims, and reconciliations. 

2. How do management select, or design, the 

methods, used in respect of this accounting 

estimate, including the models used? 

Were any changes made to these methods or 

models in 2021/22, and if so what was the 

reason for the change?  

The Council’s existing accounting policies are applied 

consistently: income is recorded when it is earned rather 

than when it is received, and expenses are recorded 

when goods and services are received rather than when 

the payment is made.  Provisions are made where an 

event has taken place that gives the authority a legal or 

constructive obligation that probably requires settlement 

by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, 

and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 

obligation. 

No changes were made in 2021/22. 

3. How do management select the assumptions 

used in respect of this accounting estimate? 

Were any changes made to these assumptions 

in 2021/22, and if so what was the reason for the 

change?  

The provisions and accruals are evidence based and 

assumptions made within that are disclosed within the 

working paper – the source may be an invoice, grant 

claim, or working paper of a reconciliation for example.  

Where estimation is made, that is based on existing 

knowledge, historical trend, or experience. 

No changes were made in 2021/22. 

4. How do management select the source data 

used in respect of this accounting estimate? 

Were any changes made to this source data in 

2021/22, and if so what was the reason for the 

change? 

The source data for provisions and accruals is generally 

existing data such as invoices, grant claims or regular 

reconciliations which themselves will have data sources 

(such as the VAT return). 

No changes to the source were made in 2021/22. 

5. Were any specialised skills or knowledge 

used in respect of this accounting estimates, and 

if so how were these specialist skills procured? 

No.  The accountancy skills exist within the team.  The 

management review of the provisions and accruals is 

based on experience and existing knowledge. 

6. How do management monitor the operation of 

control activities in relation to this accounting 

estimates, including the control activities at any 

service providers or management experts?  

The process of estimating and transacting provisions and 

accruals is well established.  The support from the Heads 

of Service and Project Managers is communicated in 

advance of the year-end and Accountants liaise with 

those they support. 

The accounting for provisions and accruals follows 

existing accounting policy. 

Page 169

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3



 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 10 

Commercial in confidence 

Question Management response 

7. In management’s opinion, are their adequate 

controls in place over the calculation of this 

accounting estimate, including those at any 

service provider or management expert used, 

and if so how is the robustness of the key 

controls assessed?  

In management’s opinion the controls around the 

calculation of this accounting estimate are robust.  The 

collation of accruals from within and without Finance is 

coordinated and completeness is checked by the 

Accountancy Manager.  The calculation of the MMI 

provision is directly linked to the year-end statement from 

MMI; the Business Rate provision is based upon 

discussions within the Cumbria Business Rate Pool but is 

ultimately subject to the Section 151 Officer being 

satisfied with the level considering the appeals 

outstanding. 

8. Were any changes made to the key control 

activities this year? If so please provide details.  

No changes were made to the activities.  

9. How do management consider the estimation 

uncertainty related to this accounting estimate 

and address this uncertainty when selecting the 

point estimate to use?  

In preparing the provisions and accruals, both current and 

historic information is reviewed.  Any estimated accruals 

are documented by the Accountant and reviewed as part 

of closedown and the reversal of the accruals into the 

following financial year. 

10. How do management consider the sensitivity 

of the estimate to the methods and assumptions 

used and identify the range of reasonably 

possible outcomes for disclosure in the financial 

statements? 

Whilst most accruals are evidence based, where there 

must be an estimate calculated the Council relies upon 

current and historic information, trends, service 

knowledge and experience to ensure these estimates are 

robust. 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 170

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3



 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 11 

Commercial in confidence 

Credit loss & impairment allowance estimate 

Question Management response 

1. Were any risks identified relating to the 

material accuracy of this accounting estimate for 

the financial year and, if so, how were these 

risks addressed?  

No.  The Council considers the risk of credit loss and 

impairment within the prevailing circumstances each 

year-end.  During COVID-19 the allowance estimate was 

higher than other years as the impacts upon both 

business and domestic households was difficult to 

quantify. COVID-19 has led to lengthened instalment 

plans for some customers, where amounts owed will be 

paid but not within the normal time; however, that has not 

had a significant impact on in-year income.  There were 

some debts relating to the Waste Contract negotiations 

that were in progress at year-end and some other specific 

doubtful debts where full provisions were made. 

2. How do management select, or design, the 

methods, used in respect of this accounting 

estimate, including the models used? 

Were any changes made to these methods or 

models in 2021/22, and if so what was the 

reason for the change?  

The Council’s existing accounting policies are applied 

consistently: where debts may not be settled, the balance 

of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue 

for the income that might not be collected.  For housing 

benefit overpayments, a full provision is made for the 

possible non-collection of this debt.  However, it is the 

authority’s policy to pursue all debtors where possible. 

No changes were made in 2021/22. 

3. How do management select the assumptions 

used in respect of this accounting estimate? 

Were any changes made to these assumptions 

in 2021/22, and if so what was the reason for the 

change?  

The “bad debt provisions” are evidence based and 

assumptions made within the calculations are disclosed 

within the working paper.  Where estimation is made, that 

is based on existing knowledge, historical trend or 

experience. 

No changes were made in 2021/22. 

4. How do management select the source data 

used in respect of this accounting estimate? 

Were any changes made to this source data in 

2021/22, and if so what was the reason for the 

change? 

The source data for credit loss and impairment is 

generally existing data such as outstanding debt lists, 

recovery action or specific knowledge (such as the Waste 

Contract position). 

No changes to the source were made in 2021/22. 

5. Were any specialised skills or knowledge 

used in respect of this accounting estimates, and 

if so how were these specialist skills procured? 

No.  The accountancy skills exist within the team.  The 

management review of the credit loss and impairment is 

based on experience and existing knowledge. 

6. How do management monitor the operation of 

control activities in relation to this accounting 

estimates, including the control activities at any 

service providers or management experts?  

The process of estimating and transacting credit loss and 

impairment is well established.  There is an element of 

information gathering from certain Heads of Service, 

alongside those calculations based upon the professional 

advice of the Section 151 Officer and the knowledge and 

experience of the Finance team. 

The accounting for credit loss and impairment follows 

existing accounting policy. 

7. In management’s opinion, are their adequate 

controls in place over the calculation of this 

accounting estimate, including those at any 

service provider or management expert used, 

and if so how is the robustness of the key 

controls assessed?  

In management’s opinion the controls around the 

calculation of this accounting estimate are robust.  The 

supporting information from within and without Finance is 

coordinated and completeness is checked by the 

Accountancy Manager.  The year-end values are 

ultimately subject to the Section 151 Officer being 

satisfied with the level considering the debt outstanding. 

Page 171

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3



 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 12 

Commercial in confidence 

Question Management response 

8. Were any changes made to the key control 

activities this year? If so please provide details.  

No changes were made to the activities.  

9. How do management consider the estimation 

uncertainty related to this accounting estimate 

and address this uncertainty when selecting the 

point estimate to use?  

In preparing the credit loss and impairment figures, both 

current and historic information is reviewed.  Any 

estimated amounts are documented by the Accountant 

and reviewed as part of closedown and the ongoing 

recovery process on the financial year. 

10. How do management consider the sensitivity 

of the estimate to the methods and assumptions 

used and identify the range of reasonably 

possible outcomes for disclosure in the financial 

statements? 

Whilst credit loss and impairment is sometimes directly 

evidence based, there is an element of estimation which 

relies upon current and historic information, trends, 

service knowledge and experience to ensure these 

estimates are robust. 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 172

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3



 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 13 

Commercial in confidence 

Fair value estimates (level 2 & 3 investments and borrowings) 

Question Management response 

1. Were any risks identified relating to the 

material accuracy of this accounting estimate for 

the financial year and, if so, how were these 

risks addressed?  

No.  The Council’s borrowing is PWLB fixed interest 

maturity loans which enables interest to be calculated 

precisely.  The Council’s investments are also fixed 

interest and fixed term enabling interest to be calculated 

precisely.  The Council’s financial instruments are simple 

in treasury terms. 

2. How do management select, or design, the 

methods, used in respect of this accounting 

estimate, including the models used? 

Were any changes made to these methods or 

models in 2021/22, and if so what was the 

reason for the change?  

The Council’s existing accounting policies cover financial 

liabilities and financial assets.  The policies are compliant 

with the Accounting Code of Practice, and the Treasury 

Management Code of Practice as noted in item 1. the 

Council does not hold complex financial instruments. 

No changes were made in 2021/22. 

3. How do management select the assumptions 

used in respect of this accounting estimate? 

Were any changes made to these assumptions 

in 2021/22, and if so what was the reason for the 

change?  

The “bad debt provisions” are evidence based and 

assumptions made within the calculations are disclosed 

within the working paper.  Where estimation is made, that 

is based on existing knowledge, historical trend or 

experience. 

No changes were made in 2021/22. 

4. How do management select the source data 

used in respect of this accounting estimate? 

Were any changes made to this source data in 

2021/22, and if so what was the reason for the 

change? 

The source data for investments and borrowings is 

generally existing data such as interest schedules and 

confirmation statements.  The PWLB maturity data is 

obtained from the DMO, and the Council’s treasury 

advisors support the verification of the fair value of 

financial instruments at year-end. 

No changes to the source were made in 2021/22. 

5. Were any specialised skills or knowledge 

used in respect of this accounting estimates, and 

if so how were these specialist skills procured? 

Yes.  The Council’s treasury advisors Link support the 

calculation of the fair value of financial instruments.  This 

reviewed by management before being used in the 

disclosure of material uncertainty.  Management relies on 

their experience and knowledge to review the 

disclosures. 

6. How do management monitor the operation of 

control activities in relation to this accounting 

estimates, including the control activities at any 

service providers or management experts?  

As the financial instruments are simple, the preparation of 

the working papers, transactions, and working papers is a 

process of completeness and accuracy.  This is well 

established and managed by the Finance team. 

The accounting for financial instruments follows existing 

accounting policy. 

7. In management’s opinion, are their adequate 

controls in place over the calculation of this 

accounting estimate, including those at any 

service provider or management expert used, 

and if so how is the robustness of the key 

controls assessed?  

In management’s opinion the controls around the 

calculation of this accounting estimate are robust.  The 

sources are available at year-end and there is little to 

estimate other than the relevant fair value disclosures. 

8. Were any changes made to the key control 

activities this year? If so please provide details.  

No changes were made to the activities.  

Page 173

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3



 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 14 

Commercial in confidence 

Question Management response 

9. How do management consider the estimation 

uncertainty related to this accounting estimate 

and address this uncertainty when selecting the 

point estimate to use?  

As the actual data to accrue into the ledger is available at 

year-end there is little to estimate other than the relevant 

fair value disclosures.  The financial instrument 

disclosures are documented by the Accountant and 

reviewed as part of closedown procedures. 

10. How do management consider the sensitivity 

of the estimate to the methods and assumptions 

used and identify the range of reasonably 

possible outcomes for disclosure in the financial 

statements? 

A 1% interest rate sensitivity is used to illustrate the 

impact on the fair value of borrowing.  The Council’s 

investments are short term and fixed rate with liquidity 

paramount.  The PWLB loans are also fixed rate and 

mature over a mixed term.  The disclosures in the 

financial instruments note cover the risks inherent in 

treasury activities. 

 

Page 174

Agenda Item 15
Appendix 3


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	8 Work Plan 2022-2023
	Enc. 1 for Work Plan 2022-2023

	9 Audit and Governance Improvement Plan
	Enc. 1 for Audit and Governance Improvement Plan
	Enc. 2 for Audit and Governance Improvement Plan

	10 Audit and Governance Committee Effectiveness
	Enc. 1 for Audit and Governance Committee Effectiveness

	11 Internal Audit Progress Report
	Enc. 1 for Internal Audit Progress Report
	Enc. 2 for Internal Audit Progress Report

	12 Review of Internal Audit
	13 Risk Management
	Enc. 1 for Risk Management

	14 External Audit Plan
	Enc. 1 for External Audit Plan

	15 Assurance Arrangements
	Enc. 1 for Assurance Arrangements
	Chair to GT 20_10_2022
	Barrow BC - Questions to Audit and Governance Committee Chair 2021-22 AB

	Enc. 2 for Assurance Arrangements
	Enc. 3 for Assurance Arrangements


